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1 GENERAL INFORMATION OF THE DEPARTMENT

PHYSICAL ADDRESS:  Nokuthula Simelane Building

    No 7 Government Boulevard

    MBOMBELA

    1201

POSTAL ADDRESS:   Private Bag X 11215

    MBOMBELA

    1200

TELEPHONE NUMBER/S:  (013) 766 4004

FAX NUMBER: (013) 766 4613

WEBSITE ADDRESS:  www.dedtmpumalanga.gov.za

FACEBOOK:   @MpumalangaDEDT

TWITTER:    @dedtmp
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2 LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS/ACRONYMS
AGSA

AMTS Advanced Manufacturing Strategy

AO 

APP Annual Performance Plan

BBBEE

CC’s

CCTV Closed Circuit Television

CFO

CIPC Companies and Intellectual Property Commission

CPA

CSI Corporate Social Investment

DBSA

DEDT Department of Economic Development and Tourism

DESD

DoL Department of Labour

DPSA

EEP Employment Equity Plan

EHWP

EIA Environment Impact Assessment

EIC

EMC

EU European Union

FTC

GDP

GIS

HDI Historically Disadvantaged Individuals

HOD Head of Department

HR PLAN Human Resource Plan

HRPIPR

ICC

ICT

IDC

IDP Integrated Development Plan

IGR

IWMP Integrated Waste Management Plan

KMIA

LED Local Economic Development

LRF

LTO

MDG Millennium Development Goals

MEC

MEDGP
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MEGA

MER Mpumalanga Economic Regulator

MIFPM

MINMEC

MINTECH

MISS

MLA

MTEF

MTGS

MTPA

MUNMEC

NCC

NDA

NIPF

NSDP

NTSS

OTP

PERSAL

PFMA Public Finance Management Act

PGDS

POA

PPPFA

PRIME

PSC Public Service Commission

RTO

RTP Responsible Tourism Planning

SABS

SAHC/OOAK

SCM

SDF

SDIP Service Delivery Improvement Plan

SEDA Small Enterprise Development Agency

SERO

SEZ Special Economic Zone

SITA

SMME Small Medium and Micro Enterprises

SMS Senior Management Service

SONA

SOPA

TOR Terms of Reference

TR   



Annual Report 2018/2019
Mpumalanga: Department of Economic Development and Tourism - Vote 6 8

Mr PS NGOMANE, MPL

MEC for Finance, 

Economic Development and Tourism
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3 FOREWORD BY THE MEC
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Let’s grow the economy of Mpumalanga together.

  

Mr PS NGOMANE, MPL
MEC: FINANCE, ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND TOURISM
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MR NM SEBITSO

Department of Economic Development and Tourism
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4 REPORT OF THE ACCOUNTING OFFICER
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Departmental receipts

The table below indicates a breakdown of sources of revenue, as well as actual against the target in revenue 

Departmental receipts
Actual 
Amount 
Collected

(Over)/Under 
Actual 
Amount 
Collected

(Over)/Under 

106,997 126,622 (19,625) 101,401 111,564 (10,163)

88.192 84,485 3,707 83,357 77,727 5,630

10,193 33,332 (23,139) 9,635 22,442 (12,807)

Liquor licences 8,612 8,805 (193) 8,409 11,395 (2,986)

Interest, dividends and rent 
on land

1,064 2,573 (1,509) 1,006 2,207 (1,201)

520 18 502 491 9,060 (8,569)

160 211 (51) 151 283 (132)

TOTAL

Per programme Final Expenditure (Over)/Under 
Expenditure

Final Expenditure (Over)/Under 
Expenditure

94,085 92,919 1,166 91,795 88,915 2,880

Integrated Economic 
Development

532,652 532,652 - 537,012 528,725 8,287

Trade and Sector 
Development

16,731 16,654 77 17,387 15,423 1,964

and Governance
114,479 114,405 74 103,589 103,041 548

Economic Planning 18.857 18,610 247 16,987 15,435 1,552

Tourism 383,648 383,648 - 358,722 358,308 414

TOTAL
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Per Economic Final 
Expenditure (Over)/Under 

Expenditure

Final 
Expenditure (Over)/Under 

Expenditure

Employees
137,556 137,269 287 129,412 128,335 1,077

Goods and Services 78,528 78,008 520 72,465 58,163 14,302

Transfers 669,028 668,684 344 613,040 612,774 266

Payment of Capital 
Assets

275,336 274,923 413 310,575 310,575 -

Payment of Financial 
Assets

4 4 - - - -

TOTAL

4.3 Virements/roll overs 

Programme 2 (Goods and services) R337,000

Programme 3 (Goods and services) R126,000 

Programme 4 (Goods and services) R45,000

Programme 6 (Goods and services) R145,000

Programme 2: Integrated Economic Development

Programme 3: Trade and Sector Development

from goods and services in Programme 1 to fund goods and services.
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virement received from Programme 1 to fund goods and services. 

Programme 5: Economic Planning

Programme 6: Tourism

1 to fund goods and services.

as well as steps taken to address and prevent a recurrence.

Future plans of the Department

is also currently underway. 

Public-Private Partnerships
-
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Supply Chain Management

and Services.

Other 

None 

Conclusion

Mr. NM SEBITSO
ACCOUNTING OFFICER: 

Department of Economic Development and Tourism

Date: 31 May 2019
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Accuracy For The Annual Report

Mr. NM SEBITSO
ACCOUNTING OFFICER: 

Department of Economic Development and Tourism

Date: 31 May 2019
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6 Strategic Overview

6.1 Vision 

6.2 Mission

6.3 Values

VALUE VALUE STATEMENT

Integrity

Fairness

bias and must always be considerate and just.

Accountability

management.

Transparency

Professionalism
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CONSTITUTIONAL MANDATES PURPOSE

-

LEGISLATIVE MANDATES PURPOSE

 Every employee of the Department is enjoined to ensure that 

no fruitless/irregular expenditure occurs within their area of 

responsibility

-

-

-

-

 The Department has to ensure that the Mpumalanga Gambling 

 To promote a fair accessible and sustainable market-place for 

-
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LEGISLATIVE MANDATES PURPOSE

To consolidate and amend certain laws in force in the Province 

To provide for Small Businesses to enter the economic main-

To provide for the empowerment of the black-owned companies 

The Department is responsible for ensuring that black-owned 

it is further responsible for ensuring that the necessary support 

Public Service Act. To regulate the public service in the country

 To promote a fair and non-discriminatory marketplace for access 

to consumer credit

To protect the rights of the workers

To regulate the gambling industry in the Province in terms of the 

Mpumalanga Gambling Act;

To regulate the payment of gambling levies in terms of the Mpu-

malanga Gambling Levies Act; and
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Human Resource
Management

Ms IN Phiri

HOD
Mr N Sebitso (Acting)

MEC
Mr P Ngomane, MPL

CFO
Ms H Thrush

Internal Audit
Ms RF Masuku

Legal Services
Mr TN Fakude

Communication
Dr MA Ramodibe

Strategic Planning
Services

Mr JM Ndima

Enterprise
Development

Mr PT Khumalo

Local Economic
Development
Mr PS Mohlala

Economic
Empowerment

Ms IF Serakalala

Regional Services
Gert Sibande

(Vacant)

Regional Services
Nkangala

Mr A Mkhabela

Regional Services
Ehlanzeni

Mr P Maseko

Trade and Investment
Promotion

(Vacant)

Sector Development
(Vacant)

Strategic Initiatives
Mr A Van Niekerk

Business Regulation
Mr ADJ Sebastian

Consumer Protection
(Vacant)

Economic Policy
and Planning

Mr N Nkonyane

Research and
Development

(Vacant)

Knowledge
Management

Mr MOP Kgaka

Monitoring and
Evaluation

(Vacant)

Economic Analysis
Mr L Van Vuren

Corporate Services
Ms W Rambau

Integrated Economic
Development Services

Mr LM Mdluli

Trade and Sector
Development
Mr JM Mnisi

Business Regulation
and Governance
Mr TI Makwetla

Economic Planning
Mr N Nkonyane (Acting)

Tourism Planning
Mr JD Mdluli

Tourism
Mr JD Mdluli (Acting)
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Financial 

Mpumalanga 

Economic 

To promote trade and investment in 

Mpumalanga; 

To provide funding in respect of approved 

enterprise development focusing primarily on 

the previously disadvantaged individuals in 

Mpumalanga; 

of housing loans in Mpumalanga; to deliver 

massive infrastructure in Mpumalanga

Transfer 

payments in 

line with the 

shareholders 

compact

 To promote and facilitate Trade and 

Investment in the Province

support to SMME’s in the Province

farmers in the Province

 To grant housing loans to the needy and 

previously advantaged 

Mpumalanga 

Tourism and 

To provide for the sustainable development 

and improvement of the tourism industry in 

Mpumalanga

Transfer 

payments in 

line with the 

shareholders 

compact

ecosystems within the Province

management of protected areas

 Promote and create socio-economic 

disadvantaged individuals and local 

Mpumalanga 

Economic 

Regulator

per its founding Act;

Promote responsible gambling in the Province 

Reduce the socio-economic and other related 

cost of alcohol abuse;

Promote the development of a responsible 

and sustainable retail and micro-

into the industry; diversity ownership in the 

industry and an ethos of social responsibility in 

Transfer 

payments in 

line with the 

shareholders 

compact

To ensure that the industry is regulated 

the law;

To promote responsible gambling in the 

Province;

expand and standardise industry 

compliance and enforcement;

To provide an enabling environment in 
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Part B
Performance Information
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2.1 Service Delivery Environment

2.2 Service Delivery Improvement Plan

Main services and standards

Main services
Current/actual standard 
of service

Desired standard of 
service

Actual achievement

Consumer 

Services

Consumers in the 

Province

Advisory services 

conducted and 1419 

consumer cases were 

Advisory services 

conducted and 80% 

consumer cases resolved

Advisory services conducted and 1399 

and awareness and awareness 

Enterprise 

Development 

Services

SMMEs in the Conducted 756 

workshops/awareness 

9 Agro processing SMMEs 

supported to access agro-

9 SMMEs supported to access the 

16 SMMEs supported 

through SABS 

the Social Enterprise 

Programme

16 SMMEs supported through SABS 
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Current/actual arrangements Desired arrangements Actual achievements

Members of the public and clients 

consulted through the following 

arrangements:

Walk-in interfaces

Road shows 

Conduct regular engagements in an endeavour 

to understand stakeholder needs and 

Media Houses and

Regular engagements were conducted in 

an endeavour to understand stakeholder 

structures:

Media Houses and

line)
Actual achievements

Conducted 515 workshops/awareness 

programmes conducted programmes conducted

Current/actual complaints mechanism Desired complaints mechanism Actual achievements

There were no complaints directed at the 
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Bill is enacted.
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3. Strategic Outcome Oriented Goals

Sustained economic development

Goal statement

Increased tourism in the Province

Goal statement
the sector 

but instead created 44 000 more jobs. 
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Purpose of the Programme: 

Internal Audit

Financial Management

Strategic Planning Services

* Human Resource Management

* Legal Services

* 

* Security Services

* Transversal Services
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4.2 Programme 2: Integrated Economic Development 
Services

Purpose of the Programme:

Enterprise Development

Economic Empowerment

Regional and Local Economic Development

To facilitate support and development of business enterprises
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4.3  Programme 3: Trade and Sector Development
Purpose of the Programme: 
Province and to create a conducive environment for trade and investment.

Sector Development 

outputs:
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Outcome 4.
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mutual interests. 

The Programme has coordinated and facilitated:

Stainless steel industry

Small scale furniture manufacturing, and 
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Purpose of the Programme:

industries.
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4.5 Programme 5: Economic Planning
Purpose of the Programme:

The Programme consists of the following sub-programmes:

Policy and Planning

Knowledge Management

Economic Analysis

processes.
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Regulator (MER).



Annual Report 2018/2019
Mpumalanga: Department of Economic Development and Tourism - Vote 673

A
ct

ua
l A

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t 

Pl
an

ne
d 

Ta
rg

et
A

ct
ua

l A
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t
ta

rg
et

 to
 A

ct
ua

l 

To
 p

ro
vi

de
 e

co
no

m
ic

 p
ol

ic
y 

Ec
on

om
ic

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 

po
lic

ie
s 

an
d 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 

in
te

gr
at

ed

Ec
on

om
ic

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 

po
lic

ie
s 

an
d 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 

in
te

gr
at

ed

Ec
on

om
ic

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 

po
lic

ie
s 

an
d 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 

in
te

gr
at

ed

N
on

e 
N

on
e 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 in
di

ca
to

rs

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 In
di

ca
to

r
A

ct
ua

l A
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t 
Pl

an
ne

d 
Ta

rg
et

A
ct

ua
l A

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t

ta
rg

et
 to

 A
ct

ua
l A

ch
ie

ve

Co
or

di
na

te
 th

e 

ec
on

om
y 

pl
an

 a
 re

po
rt

 

pr
od

uc
ed

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
an

d 
co

or
di

na
te

d

Bi
og

as
 p

ilo
t p

ro
je

ct
s 

im
pl

em
en

te
d

Co
-o

rd
in

at
e 

th
e 

ec
on

om
y 

pl
an

 (I
nd

us
tr

ia
l 

re
po

rt
 p

ro
du

ce
d

ec
on

om
y 

pl
an

 (I
nd

us
tr

ia
l 

pr
ov

in
ce

 w
as

 c
o-

or
di

na
te

d 

an
d 

a 
re

po
rt

 p
ro

du
ce

d

M
pu

m
al

an
ga

 In
du

st
ria

l 

Sy
m

bi
os

is
 P

ro
gr

am
 c

on
ce

pt
 

de
ve

lo
pe

d

Re
po

rt
 o

n 
th

e 
Im

pl
em

en
- -

la
ng

a 
In

du
st

ria
l S

ym
bi

os
is

 

Pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

pr
od

uc
ed

N
on

e 
N

on
e 



Annual Report 2018/2019
Mpumalanga: Department of Economic Development and Tourism - Vote 6 74

N
um

be
r o

f s
ec

to
r s

tr
at

eg
ie

s 

an
d 

pl
an

s 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

St
at

e 
of

 T
ou

ris
m

 re
po

rt
 

pr
od

uc
ed

 a
s 

in
pu

t t
ow

ar
ds

 

de
ve

lo
pi

ng
 th

e 
pr

ov
in

ci
al

 

in
te

gr
at

ed
 se

ct
or

 st
ra

te
gy

 

1 
pr

ov
in

ci
al

 in
te

gr
at

ed
 se

ct
or

 

st
ra

te
gy

 a
nd

 p
la

ns
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 

1 
pr

ov
in

ci
al

 in
te

gr
at

ed
 se

ct
or

 

st
ra

te
gy

 a
nd

 p
la

n 
de

ve
lo

pe
d:

 

(F
or

es
tr

y 
Se

ct
or

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 

N
on

e 
N

on
e 

N
on

e 

St
ra

te
gy

 to
 o

ve
rc

om
e 

ar
ea

s 
of

 u
nd

er
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce

N
on

e 

Ch
an

ge
s 

to
 p

la
nn

ed
 ta

rg
et

s

N
on

e 

Li
nk

in
g 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 w
ith

 b
ud

ge
ts

ta
rg

et
s.

A
ct

ua
l

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
(O

ve
r)

/U
nd

er
 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
A

ct
ua

l
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

(O
ve

r)
/U

nd
er

 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

Po
lic

y 
Pl

an
ni

ng



Annual Report 2018/2019
Mpumalanga: Department of Economic Development and Tourism - Vote 675

A
ct

ua
l A

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t 

Pl
an

ne
d 

Ta
rg

et
 

A
ct

ua
l A

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t 

ta
rg

et
 to

 A
ct

ua
l 

Co
m

m
en

t o
n 

To
 c

on
du

ct
/c

om
m

is
si

on
 

re
se

ar
ch

 o
n 

th
e 

pr
ov

in
ci

al
 

ec
on

om
y 

to
 in

fo
rm

 e
co

no
m

ic
 

po
lic

y 
an

al
ys

is
 p

ro
ce

ss
 a

nd
 

st
ra

te
gy

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t

pr
od

uc
ed

 to
 in

fo
rm

 e
co

no
m

ic
 

po
lic

y 
an

al
ys

is
 p

ro
ce

ss
 a

nd
 

st
ra

te
gy

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t

pr
od

uc
ed

 to
 in

fo
rm

 e
co

no
m

ic
 

po
lic

y 
an

al
ys

is
 p

ro
ce

ss
 a

nd
 

st
ra

te
gy

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t

pr
od

uc
ed

 to
 in

fo
rm

 e
co

no
m

ic
 

po
lic

y 
an

al
ys

is
 p

ro
ce

ss
 a

nd
 

st
ra

te
gy

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t

N
on

e 
N

on
e 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 in
di

ca
to

rs

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 In
di

ca
to

r
A

ct
ua

l A
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t 
Pl

an
ne

d 
Ta

rg
et

 
A

ct
ua

l A
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t 
pl

an
ne

d 
ta

rg
et

 to
 

A
ct

ua
l A

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t f

or
 

Co
m

m
en

t o
n 

N
um

be
r o

f r
es

ea
rc

h 
re

po
rt

s 

co
nd

uc
te

d
D

at
a 

on
 th

e 
in

fo
rm

al
 e

co
no

m
y 

co
lle

ct
ed

Li
te

ra
tu

re
 re

vi
ew

 a
nd

 c
as

e 

st
ud

ie
s 

on
 th

e 
in

fo
rm

al
 

ec
on

om
y 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 b

y 
th

e 

pr
od

uc
ed

 to
 in

fo
rm

 e
co

no
m

ic
 

po
lic

y 
an

al
ys

is
 p

ro
ce

ss
 a

nd
 

st
ra

te
gy

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t

co
m

pi
le

d 
on

 th
e 

in
fo

rm
al

 

ec
on

om
y 

of
 M

pu
m

al
an

ga

pr
od

uc
ed

 to
 in

fo
rm

 e
co

no
m

ic
 

po
lic

y 
an

al
ys

is
 p

ro
ce

ss
 a

nd
 

st
ra

te
gy

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t:
 

co
m

pi
le

d 
on

 th
e 

in
fo

rm
al

 

ec
on

om
y 

of
 M

pu
m

al
an

ga

N
on

e
N

on
e

An
 e

-b
as

ed
 b

us
in

es
s 

M
pu

m
al

an
ga

 d
ev

el
op

ed

1 
re

po
rt

 c
om

pi
le

d 
on

 

M
pu

m
al

an
ga

 e
-b

us
in

es
s 

re
d 

ta
pe

 s
ur

ve
y 

co
nd

uc
te

d

An
 e

-b
as

ed
 b

us
in

es
s 

re
d 

ta
pe

 s
ur

ve
y 

fo
r M

pu
m

al
an

ga
 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
an

d 
a 

re
po

rt
 

co
m

pi
le

d

N
on

e
N

on
e



Annual Report 2018/2019
Mpumalanga: Department of Economic Development and Tourism - Vote 6 76

N
on

e 

St
ra

te
gy

 to
 o

ve
rc

om
e 

ar
ea

s 
of

 u
nd

er
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce

N
on

e 

Ch
an

ge
s 

to
 p

la
nn

ed
 ta

rg
et

s

N
on

e 

Li
nk

in
g 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 w
ith

 b
ud

ge
ts

A
ct

ua
l

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
(O

ve
r)

/U
nd

er
 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
A

ct
ua

l
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

(O
ve

r)
/U

nd
er

 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

Re
se

ar
ch

 a
nd

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

 

A
ct

ua
l A

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t 

Pl
an

ne
d 

Ta
rg

et
 

A
ct

ua
l A

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t 

ta
rg

et
 to

 A
ct

ua
l 

Co
m

m
en

t o
n 

an
d 

in
te

lli
ge

nc
e 

on
 th

e 

m
ak

in
g

A 
re

lia
bl

e 
sy

st
em

 fo
r e

co
no

m
ic

 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d

D
ev

el
op

ed
 a

nd
 m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
a 

re
lia

bl
e 

sy
st

em
 fo

r e
co

no
m

ic
 

A 
re

lia
bl

e 
sy

st
em

 fo
r e

co
no

m
ic

 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d

N
on

e 
N

on
e 



Annual Report 2018/2019
Mpumalanga: Department of Economic Development and Tourism - Vote 677

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 in
di

ca
to

rs

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 In
di

ca
to

r
A

ct
ua

l A
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t 
Pl

an
ne

d 
Ta

rg
et

 
A

ct
ua

l A
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t 
ta

rg
et

 to
 A

ct
ua

l 
Co

m
m

en
t o

n 

N
um

be
r o

f u
pd

at
ed

 s
ha

re
d 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
as

 in
pu

t t
o 

an
 

pr
od

uc
ed

an
d 

up
da

te
d 

 

N
on

e
N

on
e

N
um

be
r E

m
pl

oy
m

en
t a

nd
 

bu
si

ne
ss

 s
ur

ve
ys

 c
on

du
ct

ed
 

Pr
oj

ec
t p

la
n 

w
as

 a
m

en
de

d 
to

 

so
ur

ce
 d

at
a 

di
re

ct
ly

 fr
om

 th
e 

si
m

ila
r d

at
ab

as
e 

is
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

to
 

Em
pl

oy
m

en
t a

nd
 b

us
in

es
s 

su
rv

ey
s 

fo
r 2

 L
oc

al
 

Em
pl

oy
m

en
t a

nd
 b

us
in

es
s 

su
rv

ey
 fo

r 1
 lo

ca
l M

un
ic

pa
lit

y 

co
nd

uc
te

d

in
 1

 lo
ca

l m
un

ic
ip

al
ity

 

Pr
oj

ec
t t

o 
fo

llo
w

 

th
ro

ug
h 

in
 th

e 

ye
ar

 in
 o

rd
er

 to
 

co
m

pl
et

e 
ta

rg
et

N
um

be
r o

f s
er

ie
s 

la
bo

ur
  

re
po

rt
s 

pr
od

uc
ed

 b
as

ed
 o

n 

1 
se

rie
s 

la
bo

ur
 re

po
rt

 
1 

se
rie

s 
la

bo
ur

  r
ep

or
ts

 
1 

se
rie

s 
la

bo
ur

  r
ep

or
ts

 
N

on
e

N
on

e



Annual Report 2018/2019
Mpumalanga: Department of Economic Development and Tourism - Vote 6 78

la
te

r d
at

e.

St
ra

te
gy

 to
 o

ve
rc

om
e 

ar
ea

s 
of

 u
nd

er
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce

Ch
an

ge
s 

to
 p

la
nn

ed
 ta

rg
et

s

N
on

e 



Annual Report 2018/2019
Mpumalanga: Department of Economic Development and Tourism - Vote 679

Li
nk

in
g 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 w
ith

 b
ud

ge
ts

A
ct

ua
l

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
(O

ve
r)

/U
nd

er
 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
A

ct
ua

l
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

(O
ve

r)
/U

nd
er

 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

Kn
ow

le
dg

e 
M

an
ag

em
en

t

A
ct

ua
l A

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t 

Pl
an

ne
d 

Ta
rg

et
 

A
ct

ua
l A

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t 

ta
rg

et
 to

 A
ct

ua
l 

Co
m

m
en

t o
n 

To
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
th

e 
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

ov
er

si
gh

t p
ro

du
ce

d

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 m
on

ito
rin

g 

ov
er

si
gh

t p
ro

du
ce

d 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 m
on

ito
rin

g 

ov
er

si
gh

t p
ro

du
ce

d

N
on

e 
N

on
e



Annual Report 2018/2019
Mpumalanga: Department of Economic Development and Tourism - Vote 6 80

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 in
di

ca
to

rs

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 In
di

ca
to

r
A

ct
ua

l A
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t 
Pl

an
ne

d 
Ta

rg
et

 
A

ct
ua

l A
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t 
ta

rg
et

 to
 A

ct
ua

l 
Co

m
m

en
t o

n 

N
um

be
r o

f m
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 

pr
oj

ec
ts

pr
oj

ec
ts

4 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

N
on

e
N

on
e

ov
er

si
gh

t r
ep

or
ts

 p
ro

du
ce

d

lin
e 

w
ith

 th
ei

r s
tr

at
eg

ic
 p

la
ns

 
lin

e 
w

ith
 th

ei
r s

tr
at

eg
ic

 p
la

ns
 

lin
e 

w
ith

 th
ei

r s
tr

at
eg

ic
 p

la
ns

 

N
on

e
N

on
e

N
on

e 

St
ra

te
gy

 to
 o

ve
rc

om
e 

ar
ea

s 
of

 u
nd

er
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce

N
on

e 

Ch
an

ge
s 

to
 p

la
nn

ed
 ta

rg
et

s

N
on

e 



Annual Report 2018/2019
Mpumalanga: Department of Economic Development and Tourism - Vote 681

Li
nk

in
g 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 w
ith

 b
ud

ge
ts

A
ct

ua
l

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
(O

ve
r)

/U
nd

er
 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
A

ct
ua

l
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

(O
ve

r)
/U

nd
er

 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

M
on

ito
ri

ng
 a

nd
 e

va
lu

 

A
ct

ua
l A

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t 

Pl
an

ne
d 

Ta
rg

et
 

A
ct

ua
l A

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t 

ta
rg

et
 to

 A
ct

ua
l 

Co
m

m
en

t o
n 

Co
nd

uc
t s

oc
io

-e
co

no
m

ic
 

re
se

ar
ch

 to
 in

fo
rm

 th
e 

pr
ov

in
ci

al
 a

nd
 m

un
ic

ip
al

 

pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 b
ud

ge
t 

pr
oc

es
se

s

Im
pr

ov
ed

 p
ro

vi
nc

ia
l p

la
nn

in
g 

ac
cu

ra
te

 s
oc

io
-e

co
no

m
ic

 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 p
ro

vi
nc

ia
l p

la
nn

in
g 

ac
cu

ra
te

 s
oc

io
-e

co
no

m
ic

 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 p
ro

vi
nc

ia
l p

la
nn

in
g 

ac
cu

ra
te

 s
oc

io
-e

co
no

m
ic

 

N
on

e 
N

on
e 



Annual Report 2018/2019
Mpumalanga: Department of Economic Development and Tourism - Vote 6 82

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 in
di

ca
to

rs

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 In
di

ca
to

r
A

ct
ua

l A
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t 
Pl

an
ne

d 
Ta

rg
et

 
A

ct
ua

l A
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t 
ta

rg
et

 to
 A

ct
ua

l 
Co

m
m

en
t o

n 

N
um

be
r o

f P
ro

vi
nc

ia
l 

Ec
on

om
ic

 R
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 O
ut

lo
ok

 

pu
bl

is
he

d

1 
Pr

ov
in

ci
al

 E
co

no
m

ic
 R

ev
ie

w
 

co
m

pi
le

d 
an

d 
pu

bl
is

he
d

1 
Pr

ov
in

ci
al

 E
co

no
m

ic
 R

ev
ie

w
 

co
m

pi
le

d 
an

d 
pu

bl
is

he
d

1 
Pr

ov
in

ci
al

 E
co

no
m

ic
 R

ev
ie

w
 

an
d 

pu
bl

is
he

d 

N
on

e 
N

on
e 

N
um

be
r o

f u
pd

at
ed

 S
oc

io
-

Ec
on

om
ic

 R
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 O
ut

lo
ok

 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

ed

2 
up

da
te

d 
So

ci
o-

Ec
on

om
ic

 

re
po

rt
s 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 a

nd
 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

ed

2 
up

da
te

d 
So

ci
o-

Ec
on

om
ic

 

re
po

rt
s 

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 a

nd
 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

ed

2 
up

da
te

d 
So

ci
o-

Ec
on

om
ic

 

re
po

rt
s 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 a

nd
 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

ed

N
on

e 
N

on
e 

N
um

be
r o

f u
pd

at
ed

 P
ro

vi
nc

ia
l  

co
m

pl
et

ed

16
 u

pd
at

ed
 P

ro
vi

nc
ia

l  

co
m

pl
et

ed

N
on

e 
N

on
e 

N
um

be
r o

f S
oc

io
-E

co
no

m
ic

 

of
 P

ro
vi

nc
ia

l R
ev

en
ue

 a
nd

 

co
m

pi
le

d 
an

d 
ta

bl
ed

1 
So

ci
o-

Ec
on

om
ic

 O
ut

lo
ok

 

Pr
ov

in
ci

al
 R

ev
en

ue
 a

nd
 

co
m

pi
le

d 
an

d 
ta

bl
ed

1 
So

ci
o-

Ec
on

om
ic

 O
ut

lo
ok

 

Pr
ov

in
ci

al
 R

ev
en

ue
 a

nd
 

co
m

pi
le

d 
an

d 
 ta

bl
ed

 

1 
So

ci
o-

Ec
on

om
ic

 O
ut

lo
ok

 

Pr
ov

in
ci

al
 R

ev
en

ue
 a

nd
 

co
m

pi
le

d 
an

d 
 ta

bl
ed

N
on

e
N

on
e

N
um

be
r o

f e
co

no
m

ic
 re

se
ar

ch
 

re
po

rt
s 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 (i

n 
lin

e 

7 
ec

on
om

ic
 re

se
ar

ch
 re

po
rt

s 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 (i

n 
lin

e 
w

ith
 

7 
ec

on
om

ic
 re

se
ar

ch
 re

po
rt

s 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 (i

n 
lin

e 
w

ith
 

7 
ec

on
om

ic
 re

se
ar

ch
 re

po
rt

s 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 (i

n 
lin

e 
w

ith
 

N
on

e
N

on
e



Annual Report 2018/2019
Mpumalanga: Department of Economic Development and Tourism - Vote 683

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 In
di

ca
to

r
A

ct
ua

l A
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t 
Pl

an
ne

d 
Ta

rg
et

 
A

ct
ua

l A
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t 
ta

rg
et

 to
 A

ct
ua

l 
Co

m
m

en
t o

n 

N
um

be
r o

f u
pd

at
ed

 S
oc

io
-

20
 u

pd
at

ed
 S

oc
io

-E
co

no
m

ic
 

co
m

pl
et

ed

20
 u

pd
at

ed
 S

oc
io

-E
co

no
m

ic
 

co
m

pl
et

ed

20
 u

pd
at

ed
 S

oc
io

-E
co

no
m

ic
 

co
m

pl
et

ed

N
on

e
N

on
e

N
on

e 

St
ra

te
gy

 to
 o

ve
rc

om
e 

ar
ea

s 
of

 u
nd

er
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce

N
on

e 

Ch
an

ge
s 

to
 p

la
nn

ed
 ta

rg
et

s

N
on

e 



Annual Report 2018/2019
Mpumalanga: Department of Economic Development and Tourism - Vote 6 84

Li
nk

in
g 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 w
ith

 b
ud

ge
ts

A
ct

ua
l

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
(O

ve
r)

/U
nd

er
 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
A

ct
ua

l
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

(O
ve

r)
/U

nd
er

 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

Ec
on

om
ic

 A
na

ly
si

s

D
EC

LA
RA

TI
O

N
 O

F 
IN

FO
RM

AT
IO

N
 (A

R 
20

18
/1

9 
- P

ER
FO

RM
AN

CE
 IN

FO
RM

AT
IO

N
)

YE
S

N
O

Si
gn

at
ur

e:
 _

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__



Annual Report 2018/2019
Mpumalanga: Department of Economic Development and Tourism - Vote 685

4.6 Programme 6: Tourism

Purpose of the Programme:
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5 Transfer Payments

Name of Public 
Services rendered by the Amount transferred Amount spent by 

Achievements of the public 

Mpumalanga 

Economic 

Growth Agency

Promote and facilitate 
Trade and Investment in the 
Province;

in the Province;

to emerging farmers in the 
Province;
Grant housing loans to 
the needy and previously 

Plans to revitalise MEGA’s 
industrial and commercial 

Trade and investment 
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Name of Public Services rendered by the 
Amount transferred Amount spent by 

Achievements of the 

Mpumalanga Tourism 

and Parks Agency management and 

and ecosystems within the 
Province

Develop and ensure 

protected areas

Promote and create socio-
economic growth and 

economic and employment 

disadvantaged individuals 

Increased number of 
foreign arrivals from 

Growth of tourists from 

Yekaterinburg in 2016 
and the tour operator’s 
workshop conducted in 

increased by 27%  
pushing the Province 
to number 4 when 
compared to number 6 in 
the provincial ranking for 

Promoted tourism 
and management of 

The Nkangala Resistance 
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Name of Public Services rendered by the 
Amount transferred Amount spent by 

Achievements of the 

Mpumalanga 

Economic Regulator

To ensure that industry 

within the parameter of 
Law

To promote responsible 
gambling within the 
province 

standardise industry 
compliance and 

Provide an enabling 
environment in human 

Engender a high 

and management of the 

regulate the gambling 

growth and the social 

environment for the 

generate revenue in 

revenue collected for 
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been spend.  



Annual Report 2018/2019
Mpumalanga: Department of Economic Development and Tourism - Vote 693

Name of 
transferee

Type of or
Purpose for 

which the funds 
were used 

Did the dept. 
comply with s 

PFMA

Amount 
transferred 

Amount 
spent by the Reasons for the funds un

Mpumalanga 

-

Incubator 

-

sans

Training

N/a - - No funds were transferred due 

to the fact that the Tooling 

-

placed with the Future Produc-

Mpumalanga 

Stainless 

-

Incubator in 

Stainless Steel 

Industry

Rental of suitable 

building and Train-

building

Yes

N/a

Furntech

Incubator in 

wood and 

wood prod-

ucts industry

Training and ca-

pacity building

Yes 650 650

N/a
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Key summary of achievements

Maintenance and cleaning of industrial areas 

Safe and patrolled environments 

Alien plants removed 

Clean day visitor centre

Safe and patrolled environments 

Controlled soil erosion 
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Department to whom the grant has been transferred
Mpumalanga Economic Growth Agency

Mpumalanga Tourism and Parks Agency

Purpose of the grant To create jobs within the Environment and Cultural Centre

Expected outputs of the grant

Actual outputs achieved

Reasons if amount as per DORA not transferred None

Monitoring mechanism by the transferring 

Department
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Department who transferred the grant 

Purpose of the grant To create jobs within the Environment and Cultural Centre

Expected outputs of the grant

Actual outputs achieved Jobs were created within the Environmental and Culture Sector

Reasons if amount as per DORA was not received None

None 

Measures taken to improve performance

Monitoring mechanism by the receiving Department
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7.1. Donor Funds Received
None 

8.1. Capital investment, maintenance and asset 
management plan

(MIFPM)

Infrastructure projects Final 
 

Actual 
Expenditure 

(Over)/Under 
Expenditure 

Final 
 

Actual 
Expenditure 

(Over)/
Under 

Expenditure 

New and replacement assets - -

- Maintenance and repairs 525 18 507 500 - 500

Infrastructure transfer 

- Capital 614

Total
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Part C
Governance
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management and internal control improvements. 

-
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The Department must provide an update on develop-

The Department must ensure that the Government 

GNP is concerned and the reasons for the delays thereof

The Department must clearly indicate why the number of 
schools will not increase at the commencement of Phase 2 

The reason were based on the number of schools which have been provid-

Industrial Technology Park

The Department must ensure that interim Board members 
are appointed into the Board for MEGA before the end of year

The appointment of the CFO and Head of department

SCOPA
-

ment.

-

-



Annual Report 2018/2019
Mpumalanga: Department of Economic Development and Tourism - Vote 6103

compliance

Progress made in clearing / resolving 

value below R500 000 were procured 

designated for local content and 

2017/18
presented by Provincial Treasury and 
other service providers from Supply 

training provided by the Department of 

and supported by full and proper records 

2017/18 AGSA and Provincial Treasury were 

audit

External assessment on the internal audit 2015/16 Provincial Treasury is currently 

assessment to determine progress made 

will be conducted and approval has been 
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resources.

Summary of Internal Audit Work Done

Asset Management

Financial Statements Audits (Annual and Interim)

Internal Controls

Fleet Management

Transfer Payments

MPAT Review

Follow Up Reviews: Internal Audit Reports and 
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a need arose, independent of management.

Name of 
member

Internal or 
external

If internal, 

department

Date 
appointed

Expiry of term
No of 

Ms TI Ranape BTech Public 
Management

Higher Dipl: 
Management

ND: State Finance

External External 01/06/2014 31/05/ 2020 2/5

Chartered Accountant

BCom Honours

MDP on BBBEE

External External 01/06/2014 31/05/ 2017 2/5

BCom Honours External External 13/05/2013 31/05/ 2017 2/5

LLB

B Juris

Dipl in Tax Law

External External 01/06/2014 31/05/ 2017 2/5
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Name
Internal or 

external

If internal, 

department

Date 
appointed

Expiry of term
No. of 

Ms Thabsile Idah 

Ranape

Chairperson

BTech Public Management

Higher Dipl: Management

Diploma in State Finance

External External 01/06/2014 31/05/ 2020 3/5

Mr  Sam 

Mthembu 

 

 

MBL

External External 01/09/2017 31/08/2019 3/5

Mr Hangalakani 

Hlomane

BSc: Maths Sciences

Masters: IT

External External 01/09/2017 31/08/2019 3/5

Ms Nonyaniso B Proc Degree External External 01/09/2017 31/08/2019 3/5

Mr Sibusiso 

Khululekani 

Mavundla

Internal:

Premier

01/09/2017 31/08/2019 3/5
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Interim Financial Statements

Follow Up Reviews: Internal Audit Reports 

Follow Up Reviews: Auditor General
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Timeline to review departmental policies and procedures.

Annual Financial Statements

Auditor General’s Report

Internal Audit 
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MS. TI RANAPE

Economic Development and Tourism

Date: 31 July 2019
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Part D
Human Resource

Management
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Overview Of Human Resources 
The status of human resources in the Department

tool to Departmental Human Resource needs.   

Employee performance management

employees were implemented.
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Employee wellness programmes

Personnel related expenditure

amount spent on personnel 
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Programme Total 
expenditure 

Personnel 
expenditure 

Training 
expenditure

Professional 
and special 
services 
expenditure 

Personnel 
expenditure 
as a % 
of total 
expenditure

Average 
personnel 
cost per 
employee 

Number of 
Employees

92 956  63 347 0 0 857 108

Integrated Econ 

Development

532 652 27 895 0 0 1 116

Trade and Sector 

Development

16 654 11 560 0 0 680 17

Business Regula- 114 405 16 438 0 0 567 29

Economic Planning 18 610 14 487 0 0 762 19

Tourism 383 648 3 542 0 0 708 5

TOTAL

Salary band Personnel 
expenditure 

% of total 
personnel 
cost

No. of 
employees

Average 
personnel cost 
per employee 

Total Personnel 
Cost for 
Department 
including Goods 
and Services 

  333 2  166 500  146 955

 9 251 33  280 333  146 955

 36 565

83  440 540  146 955

04 Highly skilled supervision (Levels  59 588

76  784 050  146 955

 27 652 22 1 256 909  146 955

  724   0  146 955

 1 765 2  882 500  146 955

 1 229 1 1 229 000  146 955

  162 81  2 000  146 955

TOTAL
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Programme Number of posts 
on approved 
establishment

Number of Vacancy Rate Number of employees 

establishment

113 108 0

Integrated Economic Development Services 40 40 0 0

Trade and Sector Development 17 17 0 0

29 29 0 0

Economic Planning 19 17 0 0

Tourism 5 5 0 0

TOTAL

Salary band Number of posts 
on approved 
establishment

Number of posts Vacancy 
Rate

Number of employees 

establishment

Permanent

2 2 0 0

-

nent

33 33 0 0

83 83 0 0

04 Highly Skilled Supervision 78 76 0

05 Senior Management  (Levels 25 22 12 0

2 2 0 0

1 1 0 0

TOTAL
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Number of 
posts on 
approved 
establishment

Number 
of posts 

Vacancy 
Rate

Number of 
employees 

establishment

31 31 0 0

12 12 0 0

8 8 0 0

54 54 0 0

16 16 0 0

6 6 0 0

6 6 0 0

0 0 0 0

1 1 0 0

1 0 100 0

Permanent

1 1 0 0

1 1 0 0

17 16 0

1 1 0 0

2 2 0 0

2 2 0 0

3 3 0 0

2 2 0 0

3 2 0

3 3 0 0

1 1 0 0

19 19 0 0

16 14 0

2 2 0 0

16 16 0 0

TOTAL
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Notes

-

employees.  

Filling of SMS Posts

SMS Level Total 
number of 
funded SMS 
posts 

Total number 
of  SMS posts 

% of SMS Total number of SMS 
posts vacant 

% of SMS 
posts 
vacant

Director-General/ Head of Department 1 0 0 1 100

Salary Level 16 1 1 100 0 0

Salary Level 15 0 0 0 0 0

Salary Level 14 6 5 1

Salary Level 13 17 17 100 0 0

Total
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SMS Level Total 
number of 
funded SMS 
posts 

Total number 
of  SMS posts 

% of SMS Total number of SMS 
posts vacant 

% of SMS posts vacant 

Director-General/ Head of Depart-

ment
1 0 0 1 100

Salary Level 16 1 1 100 0 0

Salary Level 15 0 0 0 0 0

Salary Level 14 6 5 1

Salary Level 13 17 17 100 0 0

Total

SMS Level

Filling of Posts

Number of vacancies 

becoming vacant

Number of vacancies 

months of becoming 
vacant

Director-General/ Head of Department 1 0 1

Salary Level 16 0 0 0

Salary Level 15 0 0 0

Salary Level 14 1 0 1

Salary Level 13 0 0 0

Total
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Notes

-
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Notes

Salary band Number of 
posts on 
approved 
establishment

Number 
of Jobs 
Evaluated

% of posts 
evaluated 
by salary 
bands

Posts Upgraded Posts downgraded

Number % of  posts 
evaluated

Number % of  posts 
evaluated

01 Lower Skilled 2 0 0 0 0 0 0

02 Skilled (Levels 33 4 4 100 0 0

03 Highly Skilled 83 28 9 0 0

04 Highly Skilled 

Supervision (Levels 

78 16 12 75 0 0

05 Senior Man-

agement Service 

Band A

17 0 0 0 0 0 0

06 Senior Man-

agement Service 

Band B

6 1 1 100 0 0

07 Senior Man-

agement Service 

Band C

1 0 0 0 0 0 0

08 Senior Man-

agement Service 

Band D

1 0 0 0 0 0 0

13 Contract (Levels 2 0 0 0 0 0 0

14 Contract Band A 1 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL
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Gender African Asian Coloured White Total

Female 6 0 0 0 6

Male 12 0 0 0 12

Total 18 0 0 0 18

Employees with a disability 0

Number of employees

None None None None None

0

Percentage of total employed 0
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Gender African Asian Coloured White Total

Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0 0

Employees with a disability None None None None None

Notes
-

None
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Salary band Number of employees Appointments 
and transfers 
into the 
department

and transfers 
out of the 
department 

Turnover rate

-

nent
2 0 0 0

35 0 2

85 0 1

04 Highly Skilled Supervision (Levels 
79 0 3

05 Senior Management Service Band 

A Permanent
16 0 0 0

06 Senior Management Service Band 

B Permanent
5 0 0 0

08 Senior Management Service Band 

D Permanent
1 0 0 0

14 0 0 0

2 14 14 100

14 Contract Band A Permanent 1 0 0 0

TOTAL
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Number of employees 
at beginning of 

Appointments 
and transfers 
into the 
department

and transfers 
out of the 
department

Turnover rate

32 0 1

Permanent
10 0 0 0

Permanent
9 0 1

Economists Permanent 56 0 0 0

Finance and Economics related Permanent 17 0 0 0

Financial and related Professionals Permanent 6 0 1

Financial Clerks and Credit Controllers 

Permanent
6 0 0 0

Food Services aids and waiters Permanent 0 0 0 0

Professionals Permanent
1 0 0 0

relate prof Permanent
1 0 0 0

Human Resources Clerks Permanent 15 0 14

Human Resources related Permanent 16 0 0 0

1 0 0 0

Legal related Permanent 2 0 0 0

Light vehicle Drivers Permanent 3 0 1

3 0 0 0

Messengers Porters and Deliverers Permanent 2 0 0 0

Natural Sciences related Permanent 2 0 0 0

Permanent
1 0 0 0

Regulatory Inspectors Permanent 3 0 0 0

Risk Management and Security Services 

Permanent
1 0 0 0

Permanent
20 0 1 5

Senior Managers Permanent 14 0 0 0

Permanent
1 0 0 0
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Number of employees 
at beginning of 

Appointments 
and transfers 
into the 
department

and transfers 
out of the 
department

Turnover rate

Permanent
2 0 0 0

Profession Permanent
16 0 1

TOTAL

Notes

Termination Type  Number % of Total Resignations

Death 1 5

2 10

14 70

0 0

Dismissal – misconduct 0 0

0 0

Discharged due to ill-health 0 0

1 5

Transfer to other Public Service Departments 2 10

Total 20

employment

20
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to another 
salary level

Salary level 

% of employees 

Progressions to 
another notch 
within a salary 
level

Notch progression 
as a % of employees 

32 1 18

10 0 0 9 90

-

ed Permanent
9 3 5

Economists Permanent 56 0 0 51

Finance and Economics related Per-

manent
17 0 0 14

Financial and related Professionals 

Permanent
6 5 3 50

Financial Clerks and Credit Controllers 

Permanent
6 0 0 2

Food Services aids and waiters Perma-

nent
0 0 0 0 0

Professionals Permanent
1 0 0 1 100

1 0 0 1 100

Human Resources Clerks Permanent 15 0 0 2

Human Resources related Permanent 16 2 14

-

manent
1 1 100 1 100

Legal related Permanent 2 0 0 2 100

Light vehicle Drivers Permanent 3 0 0 2

-

nent
3 0 0 2

Messengers Porters and Deliverers 

Permanent
2 0 0 2 100
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to another 
salary level

Salary level 

% of employees 

Progressions to 
another notch 
within a salary 
level

Notch 
progression 
as a % of 
employees 
by 

Natural Sciences related Permanent 2 0 0 2 100

organisers Permanent
1 0 0 0 0

Regulatory Inspectors Permanent 3 0 0 3 100

Risk Management and Security Servic-

es Permanent
1 0 0 1 100

-

ing Clerks Permanent
20 3 15 17 85

Senior Managers Permanent 14 0 0 11

1 0 0 0 0

Permanent
2 0 0 2 100

-

ed Profession Permanent
16 3 14

TOTAL 240 18 179
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Salary Band
to another 
salary level

Salary bands 

as a % of 
employees by 
salary level

Progressions to 
another notch 
within a salary level

Notch progression as a 
% of
employees by salary 
bands

Permanent

2 0 0 1 50

Permanent
35 3 31

85 7 63

04 Highly Skilled Supervision 
79 8 65

05 Senior Management Service 

Band A Permanent
16 0 0 13

06 Senior Management Service 

Band B Permanent
5 0 0 4 80

08 Senior Management Service 

Band D Permanent
1 0 0 0 0

14 0 0 0 0

2 0 0 1 50

14 Contract Band A 1 0 0 1 100

TOTAL
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3.5. Employment Equity 

Male Female Total

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

managers

16 1 0 2 4 0 0 0 23

management

22 1 0 1 13 1 0 2 40

22 0 0 0 16 0 0 0 38

27 0 0 0 73 1 0 2 103

0 0 0 0 15 0 0 0 15

Temporary/contract/interns 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total

3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3
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Male Female Total

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

Top Management 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

Senior Management 14 1 0 2 4 0 0 0 21

and experienced 

specialists and mid-

management

42 1 0 1 29 0 1 2 76

Skilled technical 

and academically 

superintendents

25 0 0 0 57 0 0 1 83

Semi-skilled and 

making

2 0 0 0 29 1 0 1 33

decision making

0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 2

Contract (Senior 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

Contract (Professionally 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2

Total
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Male Female Total

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

Top Management 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Senior Management 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

and experienced 

specialists and mid-

management

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Skilled technical 

and academically 

superintendents

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Semi-skilled and 

making

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

decision making

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Contract (Senior 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Contract (Professionally 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total
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Male Female Total

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

Top Management 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Senior Management 11 1 0 2 3 0 0 0 17

experienced specialists and mid-

management

32 1 0 1 29 0 1 1 65

Skilled technical and academically 

foreman and superintendents

16 0 0 0 46 0 0 1 63

decision making

3 0 0 0 26 1 0 1 31

making

0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1

1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

10 Contract (Professionally 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

Total

3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3



Annual Report 2018/2019
Mpumalanga: Department of Economic Development and Tourism - Vote 6135

Male Female Total

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

Top Management 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Senior Management 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

and experienced 

specialists and mid-

management

0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 2

Skilled technical 

and academically 

superintendents

0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 2

Semi-skilled and 

making

1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

decision making 

7 0 0 0 8 0 0 0 15

Total 

Employees with 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
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Male Female Total

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

Altering with Medical 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1

Usage of Government 

vehicle without 

1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

Total

Male Female Total

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

-

cials and managers

11 0 0 1 4 0 0 1 17

Professionals 14 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Technicians and associ-

ate professionals

28 0 0 0 36 0 0 1 65

Clerks 2 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 2

Service and sales workers 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Skilled agriculture and 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

workers

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Plant and machine oper-

ators and assemblers

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2 0 0 0 11 0 0 0 0

Employees with disa- 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2

Total

Signing of Performance Agreements by SMS Members
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-

SMS Level Total number of funded 
SMS posts

Total number of  SMS 
members

Total number of  
signed performance 
agreements

Signed performance 
agreements as % of 
total number of SMS 
members

Director-General/ Head of 

Department

1 0 0 0

Salary Level 16 0 0 0 0

Salary Level 15 0 0 0 0

Salary Level 14 6 5 5 100%

Salary Level 13 17 17 16 94%

TOTAL
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Notes

Reasons 

Notes

Reasons 
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Race and Gender

Cost

Number of Number of 
employees

% of total 
within 
group

Average cost per employee

African

Male 57 121 15 809

Female 41 84 27 629

Asian  

Male 1 1 100 44 830

Female 0 0 0 0 0

Coloured 

Male 0 1 0 0 0

Female 1 2 50 39 555

White

Male 3 3 100 47 766

Female 1 4 102 165

Employees with 
disability

1 3 61 104

Total

 

Cost Total cost as a % of the total 
personnel expenditureSalary band Cost Total cost as a 

% of the total 
personnel 
expenditure

Average 
cost per 
employee

Number of Number of 
employees

% of 
total 
within 
salary 
bands

Total Cost Average 
cost per 
employee

Lower Skilled (Levels 1-2) 1 2 50 5 676

Skilled (level 3-5) 16 33 8 739

4 83 16 131

Highly skilled supervision 41 76 36 173

1 2 50 42 238

Total
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Cost

Number of Number of 
employees

Total Cost Average cost 
per employee

Permanent 14 31 19 867

8 10 7 770

3 8 33 144

19 54 27 196

Permanent
8 16 50 33 509

Financial and related 
3 6

Financial Clerks and Credit 
6 6 100 17 191

Permanent
1 1 100 7 789

0 1 0 0 0

Head of Department/Chief 
0 0 0 0 0

0 1 0 0 0

Permanent
1 1 100 14 043

Permanent
9 16 28 835

Permanent
0 1 0 0 0

1 2 50 17 702

2 2 23 120

Permanent
2 3 33 902

Messengers Porters and 
0 2 0 0 0

Permanent
2 2 100 15 013

0 1 0 0 0

Permanent
3 3 100 19 868
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Cost

Number of Number of 
employees

Total Cost Average cost 
per employee

Risk Management and Security 
0 1 0 0 0

8 19 9 658

0 14 0

-
2 2 26 592

13 16 24 682

Total

Notes

-
longed

Salary band

Cost Total cost as a % of the total 
personnel expenditureNumber of Number of 

employees
% of total 
within salary 
bands

Average cost 
per employee

Band A 0 17 0 0 0 0

Band B 0 5 0 0 0 0

Band D 0 1 0 0 0 0

Total 0 23 0 0 0 0
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Salary band Change

Number % of total Number % of total Number % Change

0 0 0 0 0 0

) 0 0 0 0 0 0

) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Contract  (level 9-12) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Contract  (level 13-16) 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL

Change

Number % of total Number % of total Number % Change

None 0 0 0 0 0 0

None 0 0 0 0 0 0

mated cost of the leave is also provided.

Salary band Total 
days

% Days with Medi Number 
of Em

ployees 
using 
sick 

leave

% of total 
employees 
using sick 

leave

Average 
days per 

employee
ed Cost 

Total 
number of 
days with 
medical 

17 4 4 8 15

5 100 1 5 20 5

288 49 6 455 209

Highly skilled supervision (Lev- 223 36 6 610 167

6 100 1 6 3 6

Senior management (Levels 48 9 5 189 42

137 25 20 5 117 124

TOTAL
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Salary band Total days % Days with 
Medical cer

Number of Employ
ees using disability 

leave

% of total em
ployees using 

disability leave

Average days 
per employ

ee

6-8)

19 100 1 20 19 25

Senior manage-
ment (Levels 
13-16)

50 100 1 20 50 193

45 100 3 60 15 34

Total 114 100 5 100 23 253

Salary band Total days taken Average Days per Employee Number of Employees who took 
leave

Contract (Levels 1-2) 93 8 11

Contract (Levels 13-16) 17 17 1

2 160 26 83

2 024 26 77

53 27 2

Senior management (Levels 13-16) 478 23 21

797 24 33

TOTAL 5 622 25 228
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Salary band Total days of capped 
leave available as on 

Number of 
Employees using 
capped leave

Average number 
of days taken per 
employee

Average capped 
leave per 
employee as on 

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

3 9 51

3 6 60

0 0 0 0

0 0 50

1 5 107

TOTAL 7 7 62

The following table summarise payments made to employees because of leave that was not taken.

Reason Number of employees Average per 

56 1 56 000

383 12 31 917

-
83 2 41 500

14 1 14 000

-
48 1 48 000

TOTAL

Key steps taken to reduce the risk 
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QUESTION YES NO DETAILS, IF YES

the SMS to implement the provisions contained 
Yes

Management

involved in this task and the annual budget that is 

Yes  
the budget allocated is R2 924 000 for 

Yes
Wellness Programmes 
Workplace HIV/AIDS Programme 

Yes

Makamu

unfairly discriminate against employees based on 

Yes All Departmental employment policies has been 

that employees are not discriminated on the 

Yes The Department has an approved HIV/AIDS and 

 

of counselling and support services to address 
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Yes The Department arranged 04 onsite Health 
Screening sessions including HIV Counselling 

-

- Yes The Department monitor and evaluate the im-
-

grammes through the analysis of health screen-
ing reports generated by GEMS and outcomes 

Date

None

Notes

The following table summarises the outcome of disciplinary hearings conducted within the department for the 
year under review.

Outcomes of disciplinary hearings Number % of total

0 0

Verbal warning 0 0

0 0

2 100

0 0

Fine 0 0

0 0

Dismissal 0 0

Not guilty 0 0

0 0

TOTAL
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Notes

None

 Type of misconduct Number % of total
1 50

1 50

TOTAL

Grievances Number % of Total
Number of grievances resolved 1

Number of grievances not resolved 7

Total number of grievances lodged 8 100

Disputes Number % of Total

Number of disputes upheld 0 0

Number of disputes dismissed 0 0

Total number of disputes lodged 0 0

Total number of persons working days lost                                                                                      0
Total costs working days lost                                                                                                                                           0

Number of people suspended
Number of people whose suspension exceeded 30 days 0

Average number of days suspended 0

0
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Skills development

gory
Gender Number of 

employees as at Learnerships Skills Pro

other short 
courses

Other forms 
of training

Total

managers

Female 4 0 20 0 20

Male 19 0 44 0 44

Professionals Female 17 0 33 0 33

Male 24 1 42 0 43

Skilled technical 

Levels 9-10

Female 17 0 38 0 38

Male 23 0 52 0 52

Semi-skilled 

decision making 
Levels 4-8

Female 79 0 29 0 29

Male 28 0 0 0 0

Service and sales 
workers

Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Skilled agriculture Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

trades workers
Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Plant and machine 
operators and 
assemblers

Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

decision making 
Levels 2-3

Female 15 0 0 6

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Elementary Female 0 6 11 0 17

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Interns Female 7 0 0 0 7

Male 7 0 0 7 7

Sub Total Female 139 6 131 7 144

Male 101 1 138 7 146

Total 240 7 269 14 290
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category
Gender Number of employ

Learnerships
short courses

Other forms 
of training

Total

-
agers

Female 4 0 21 0 21

Male 19 0 19 0 19

Professionals Female 17 0 75 0 75

Male 24 1 63 0 64

-
-

Levels 9-10

Female 17 0 24 0 24

Male 23 0 8 0 8

Semi-skilled dis-

making Levels 4-8

Female 79 0 40 0 40

Male 28 0 8 0 8

Service and sales 
workers

Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Skilled agricul-

workers

Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

trades workers
Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Plant and machine 
operators and 
assemblers

Female 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0

making Levels 2-3

Female 15 0 11 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Elementary occu- Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Interns Female 7 0 0 0 0

Male 7 0 0 0 0

Sub Total Female 139 171

Male 101 99

Total 270

Note: The total number of employees in the table above is more than the actual number of employees who are 
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Injury on duty

Nature of injury on duty Number % of total

3 100

Temporary Total Disablement 0 0

Permanent Disablement 0 0

Fatal 0 0

Total 3 100
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received from any source:

The rendering of expert advice;

Total number of consultants that 
worked on project (work days)

Contract value in
Rand

Impact Assessment Study for the 
Tourism Sector in Mpumalanga 
Province

1 110 R    564 363

Development and Review of the 
Mpumalanga SMME Develop-
ment Strategy and Its Implemen-

1 132 R   985 850

Development of Mpumalanga 1 132 R   632 500

Development of the Local Eco-
nomic Development Strategy 
Framework

1 110 R1 564 920

Review of the Forestry Develop-
ment Sector Plan

1 132 R   482 550

Total

Total number of projects Total individual 
consultants Work days

Total contract value in Rand

5 5 616 R4 230 183
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Percentage 
ownership by 

HDI groups

Percentage 
management 
by HDI groups

Number of consultants 
from HDI groups that 
work on the project

Tourism Sector in Mpumalanga Province
43 43 1

Development and Review of the Mpumalanga SMME Development 100 100 1

43 43 1

Development of the Local Economic Development Strategy 
Framework

100 100 1

Review of the Forestry Development Sector Plan 100 100 1

Total Number of consultants that 
worked on project (Work days)

Donor and contract value in 
Rand

None None None None

Total number of projects Total individual consultants Total contract value in 
Rand

None None None None

Project Percentage ownership by HDI groups Percentage 
management 
by HDI groups

Number of consultants from HDI groups that work 
on the project

None None None None

Severance Packages

Salary band Number 
of appli

received

Number of applica

MPSA
supported by MPSA

Number of 
packages 

approved by 
department

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0



Part E
Financial Information
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Programmes Pages in the annual performance report
Programme 2 – integrated economic development services 42 – 49
Programme 3 – trade and sector development 50 – 63
Programme 6 – tourism 85 – 88

: 
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APPROPRIATION STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 March 2019

Appropriation per programme
2018/19 2017/18

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting of 
Funds Virement

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure Variance

Expenditure 
as % of  

appropriation
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

Expenditure
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Programme
1.  Administration
2.  Integrated 

Economic 
Development

3.  Trade and Sector 
Development

4.  Business 
Regulation and 
Governance

5.  Economic 
Planning

6.  Tourism
 Subtotal 1,160,452 1,160,452 1,158,888 1,564 99.9 1,125,492 1,109,847
  Statutory 

Appropriation - - - - - - - - -
TOTAL 1,160,452 - - 1,160,452 1,158,888 1,564 99.9 1,125,492 1,109,847
 
TOTAL (brought forward)

 
ADD

 
 

(total revenue) 1,289,876 1,248,606
ADD

1,158,888 1,109,847
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2018/19 2017/18

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting 
of Funds Virement

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure Variance

Expenditure 

appropriation
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

expenditure
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Economic  

Current payments 216,088 - (4) 216,084 215,277 807 99.6 201,877 186,498

Transfers and  
subsidies 669,028 - - 669,028 668,684 344 99.9 613,040 612,774

Payments for capital 
assets 275,336 - - 275,336 274,923 413 99.9 310,575 310,575

assets 4 4 4 - 100 - -
Total 1,160,452 - - 1,160,452 1,158,888 1,564 99.9 1,125,492 1,109,847

APPROPRIATION STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 March 2019
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APPROPRIATION STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 March 2019

PROGRAMME 1: ADMINISTRATION
2018/19 2017/18

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting 
of Funds Virement

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure Variance

Expenditure 

appropriation
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

expenditure
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Sub programme

Total for sub 
programmes 93,082 - 1,003 94,085 92,919 1,166 98.8 91,795 88,915
Economic R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Current payments 88,758 - 1,070 89,828 89,342 486 99.5 87,770 85,156

Transfers and  
subsidies 476 409 142 267 34.7 450 184

Payments for  
capital assets 3,848 3,848 3,435 413 89.3 3,575 3,575

Total 93,082 - 1,003 94,085 92,919 1,166 98.8 91,795 88,915
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APPROPRIATION STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 March 2019

2018/19 2017/18

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting 
of Funds Virement

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure Variance

Expenditure 

appropriation
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

expenditure
Economic 

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000
Current payments 10,783 - 522 11,305 11,075 230 98 8,404 8,141

Total 10,783 - 522 11,305 11,075 230 98 8,404 8,141

1.2 Senior Management (HOD)
2018/19 2017/18

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting 
of Funds Virement

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure Variance

Expenditure 

appropriation
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

expenditure
Economic 

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000
Current payments 7,943 (603) 7,340 7,303 37 99.5 10,352 8,139

Transfers and 
subsidies - - 57 57 57 - 100 112 112

Total 7,943 - (546) 7,397 7,360 37 99.5 10,464 8,251

1.3 Financial Management `
2018/19 2017/18

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting 
of Funds Virement

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure Variance

Expenditure 

appropriation
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

expenditure
Economic 

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000
Current payments 35,446 - 286 35,732 35,634 98 99.7 33,267 33,129

Transfers and 
subsidies - - 85 85 85 - 100 58 58

Payments for capital 
assets 3,848 3,848 3,435 413 89.3 3,575 3,575

Payments for 
- - - - - -

Total 39,294 371 39,665 39,154 511 98.7 36,900 36,762
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APPROPRIATION STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 March 2019

1.4 Corporate Services 
2018/19 2017/18

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting 
of Funds Virement

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure Variance

Expenditure 

appropriation
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

expenditure
Economic 

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000
Current payments 34,586 - 865 35,451 35,330 121 99.7 35,747 35,747

Transfers and 
subsidies 476 - (209) 267 - 267 - 280 14

Total 35,062 - 656 35,718 35,330 388 98.9 36,027 35,761
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APPROPRIATION STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 March 2019

PROGRAMME 2: INTEGRATED ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
2018/19 2017/18

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting 
of Funds Virement

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure Variance

Expenditure 

appropriation
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

expenditure
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Sub programme

Total for sub 
programmes 533,218 - (566) 532,652 532,652 - 100.0% 537,012 528,725
Economic R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Current payments 70,273 - (637) 69,636 69,636 - 100.0% 60,032 51,745

Transfers and 
subsidies 191,457 67 191,524 191,524 - 100 169,980 169,980

Payments for capital 
assets 271,488 271,488 271,488 271,488 - 100 307,000 307,000

Payments for 
- 4 4 4 - - - -

Total 533,218 (566) 532,652 532,652 - 100 537,012 528,725
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APPROPRIATION STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 March 2019

2018/19 2017/18

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting 
of Funds Virement

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure Variance

Expenditure 

appropriation
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

expenditure
Economic 

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000
Current payments 1,646 - 179 1,825 1,825 - 100 1,622 1,622

Total 1,646 - 179 1,825 1,825 - 100 1,622 1,622

2.2 Enterprise Development
2018/19 2017/18

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting 
of Funds Virement

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure Variance

Expenditure 

appropriation
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

expenditure
Economic 

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000
Current payments 24,894 - (669) 24,225 24,225 - 100 15,105 10,861

Transfers and 
subsidies 191,457 - 14 191,471 191,471 - 100 169,980 169,980

169,980 169,980

Payments for capital 
assets 271,488 - - 271,488 271,488 - 100 307,000 307,000

Total 487,839 - (655) 487,184 487,184 - 100 492,085 487,841

2.3 Local Economic Development
2018/19 2017/18

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting 
of Funds Virement

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure Variance

Expenditure 

appropriation
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

expenditure
Economic 

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000
Current payments 6,578 - 193 6,771 6,771 - 100 5,946 5,928

Transfers and 
subsidies - - 53 53 53 - - - -

Total 6,578 - 246 6,824 6,824 - 100 5,946 5,928

2.4 Economic Empowerment
2018/19 2017/18

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting 
of Funds Virement

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure Variance

Expenditure 

appropriation
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

expenditure
Economic 

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000
Current payments 6,282 - (116) 6,166 6,166 - 100 5,242 3,955

Total 6,282 - (116) 6,166 6,166 - 100 5,242 3,955

166



Annual Report 2018/2019
Mpumalanga: Department of Economic Development and Tourism - Vote 6

APPROPRIATION STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 March 2019

2.5 Regional Directors
2018/19 2017/18

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting of 
Funds Virement

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure Variance

Expenditure 

appropriation
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

expenditure
Economic 

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000
Current payments 30,873 - (224) 30,649 30,649 - 100 32,117 29,379

assets - - 4 4 4 - 100 - -
Total 30,873 - (220) 30,653 30,653 - 100 32,117 29,379
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APPROPRIATION STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 March 2019

PROGRAMME 3: TRADE AND SECTOR DEVELOPMENT
2018/19 2017/18

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting 
of Funds Virement

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure Variance

Expenditure 

appropriation
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

expenditure
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Sub programme

Total for sub 
programmes 17,329 - (598) 16,731 16,654 77 99.5 17,387 15,423
Economic 

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000
Current payments 15,477 - (598) 14,879 14,879 - 100 15,108 13,144

Transfers and 
subsidies 1,852 1,852 1,775 77 95.8 2,279 2,279

Total 17,329 - (598) 16,731) 16,654 77 99.5 17,387 15,423

2018/19 2017/18

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting 
of Funds Virement

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure Variance

Expenditure 

appropriation
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

expenditure
Economic 

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000
Current payments 1,708 - 30 1,738 1,738 - 100 1,927 1,595

Total 1,708 - 30 1,738 1,738 - 100 1,927 1,595
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APPROPRIATION STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 March 2019

3.2 Trade and Investment Promotion
2018/19 2017/18

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting 
of Funds Virement

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure Variance

Expenditure 

appropriation
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

expenditure
Economic 

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000
Current payments 3,496 - (3) 3,493 3,493 - 100 3,352 2,999

Total 3,496 - (3) 3,493 3,493 - 100 3,352 2,999

3.3 Sector Development
2018/19 2017/18

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting 
of Funds Virement

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure Variance

Expenditure 

appropriation
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

expenditure
Economic 

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000
Current payments 8,501 - (636) 7,865 7,865 - 100 6,667 6,281

Transfers and 
subsidies 1,852 - - 1,852 1,775 77 95.8 2,279 2,279

Total 10,353 - (636) 9,717 9,640 77 99.2 8,946 8,560

3.4 Strategic Initiatives
2018/19 2017/18

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting 
of Funds Virement

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure Variance

Expenditure 

appropriation
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

expenditure
Economic 

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000
Current payments 1,772 - 11 1,783 1,783 - 100 3,162 2,269

Total 1,772 - 11 1,783 1,783 - 100 3,162 2,269
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APPROPRIATION STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 March 2019

PROGRAMME 4: BUSINESS REGULATION AND GOVERNANCE
2018/19 2017/18

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting 
of Funds Virement

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure Variance

Expenditure 

appropriation
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

expenditure
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Sub programme

Total for sub 
programmes 114,434 - 45 114,479 114,405 74 99.9 103,589 103,041
Economic 

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000
Current payments 18,124 - 45 18,169 18,095 74 99.6 17,403 16,855

Transfers and 
subsidies 96,310 - - 96,310 96,310 - 100 86,186 86,186

Total 114,434 - 45 114,479 114,405 74 99.9 103,589 103,041
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APPROPRIATION STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 March 2019

2018/19 2017/18

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting 
of Funds Virement

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure Variance

Expenditure 

appropriation
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

expenditure
Economic 

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000
Current payments 1,578 - - 1,578 1,704 (126) 108 1,601 1,528

Total 1,578 - - 1,578 1,704 (126) 108 1,601 1,528

4.2 Consumer Protection
2018/19 2017/18

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting 
of Funds Virement

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure Variance

Expenditure 

appropriation
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

expenditure
Economic 

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000
Current payments 12,103 - (72) 12,031 11,875 156 98.7 11,393 11,287

Total 12,103 - (72) 12,031 11,875 156 98.7 11,393 11,287

4.3 Regulation Services
2018/19 2017/18

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting 
of Funds Virement

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure Variance

Expenditure 

appropriation
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

expenditure
Economic 

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000
Current payments 4,443 - 117 4,560 4,516 44 99 4,409 4,040

Transfers and 
subsidies 96,310 - - 96,310 96,310 - 100 86,186 86,186

Total 100,753 - 117 100,870 100,826 44 100 90,595 90,226
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PROGRAMME 5: ECONOMIC PLANNING 
2018/19 2017/18

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting 
of Funds Virement

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure Variance

Expenditure 

appropriation
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

expenditure
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Sub programme

Total for sub 
programmes 18,890 - (33) 18,857 18,610 247 98.7 16,987 15,435
Economic 

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000
Current payments 18,890 - (33) 18,857 18,610 247 98.7 16,987 15,435

Total 18,890 - (33) 18,857 18,610 247 98.7 16,987 15,435
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APPROPRIATION STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 March 2019

2018/19 2017/18

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting 
of Funds Virement

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure Variance

Expenditure 

appropriation
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

expenditure
Economic 

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000
Current payments 1,687 1,812 1,812 - 100 1,692 1,562

Total 1,687 1,812 1,812 - 100 1,692 1,562

5.2 Economic Policy and Planning
2018/19 2017/18

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting 
of Funds Virement

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure Variance

Expenditure 

appropriation
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

expenditure
Economic 

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000
Current payments 3,722 - (312) 3,410 3,401 9 99.7 3,512 2,901

Total 3,722 - (312) 3,410 3,401 9 99.7 3,512 2,901

5.3 Research and Development
2018/19 2017/18

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting 
of Funds Virement

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure Variance

Expenditure 

appropriation
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

expenditure
Economic 

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000
Current payments 1,210 - 10 1,220 1,220 - 100 1,351 1,041

Total 1,210 - 10 1,220 1,220 - 100 1,351 1,041

5.4 Knowledge Management
2018/19 2017/18

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting 
of Funds Virement

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure Variance

Expenditure 

appropriation
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

expenditure
Economic 

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000
Current payments 4,514 - 192 4,706 4,706 - 100 3,741 3,421

Total 4,514 - 192 4,706 4,706 - 100 3,741 3,421
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APPROPRIATION STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 March 2019

5.5 Monitoring and Evaluation
2018/19 2017/18

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting 
of Funds Virement

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure Variance

Expenditure 

appropriation
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

expenditure
Economic 

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000
Current payments 2,698 - 105 2,803 2,803 - 100 2,284 2,229

Total 2,698 - 105 2,803 2,803 - 100 2,284 2,229

5.6 Economic Analysis
2018/19 2017/18

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting 
of Funds Virement

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure Variance

Expenditure 

appropriation
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

expenditure
Economic 

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000
Current payments 5,059 - (153) 4,906 4,668 238 95.1 4,407 4,281

Total 5,059 - (153) 4,906 4,668 238 95.1 4,407 4,281
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APPROPRIATION STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 March 2019

PROGRAMME 6: TOURISM
2018/19 2017/18

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting 
of Funds Virement

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure Variance

Expenditure 

appropriation
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

expenditure
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Sub programme
1. Tourism
Total for sub 
programmes 383,499 - 149 383,648 383,648 - 100 358,722 358,308
Economic 

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000
Current payments 4,566 149 4,715 4,715 - 100 4,577 4,163

Transfers and 
subsidies 378,933 378,933 378,933 - 100 354,145 354,145

Total 383,499 - 149 383,648 383,648 - 100 358,722 358,308

6.1 Tourism
2018/19 2017/18

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting 
of Funds Virement

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure Variance

Expenditure 

appropriation
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

expenditure
Economic 

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000
Current payments 4,566 149 4,715 4,715 - 100 4,577 4,163

Transfers and 
subsidies 378,933 378,933 378,933 - 100 354,145 354,145

Total 383,499 - 149 383,648 383,648 - 100 358,722 358,308
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NOTES TO THE APPROPRIATION STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 March 2019

1. Detail of transfers and subsidies as per Appropriation Act (after Virement):

Detail of these transactions can be viewed in the note on Transfers and subsidies, disclosure notes and Annexure 1 - 4 to 
the Annual Financial Statements.

Detail of these transactions can be viewed in note 1 (Annual Appropriation) to the Annual Financial Statements.

Financial Statements.

4.1 Per programme
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

Variance 

Variance as 
a % of Final 

Appropriation

R’000 R’000 R’000 %
Administration 94,085 92,919 1,166 1.2

Integrated Economic Development 532,652 532,652 - -

Trade and Sector Development 16,731 16,654 77 0.5

Business Regulation and Governance 114,479 114,405 74 0.1

Economic Planning 18,857 18,610 247 1.3

Tourism 383,648 383,648 - -

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Variance

Variance as 
a % of Final 

Appropriation

R’000 R’000 R’000 %

Compensation of employees 137,556 137,269 287 0.2

Goods and services 78,528 78,008 520 0.7

Transfers and subsidies
Provincial and municipalities 7 7 - -

Departmental agencies and accounts 475,243 475,243 - -

Public corporations and private enterprises 193,309 193,232 77 -

Households 469 202 267 56.9

271,488 271,488 - -

Machinery and equipment 3,848 3,435 413 10.7

4 4 - -
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NOTES TO THE APPROPRIATION STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 March 2019

4.3 Per conditional grant
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

Variance

Variance as 
a % of Final 

Appropriation

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Extended Public Works Programme (EPWP)  3,259  3,259 - -

TRANSFERS AND SUBSIDIES
The underspending under transfers and subsidies is a result of budgeted funds linked to Programme 1 for leave 

PAYMENTS FOR CAPITAL ASSETS
The underspending under capital assets, also in Programme 1 is as a result of a payment that was rejected by system 
on the last day and could not be accounted as expenditure at year end. However the payment is accounted for under 
accruals and was subsequently paid in April 2019.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

Note 2018/19 2017/18
R’000 R’000

REVENUE
Annual appropriation 1 1,160,452 1,125,492

Departmental revenue 2 129,424 123,114

TOTAL REVENUE 1,289,876 1,248,606

EXPENDITURE

Compensation of employees 3 137,269 128,335

Goods and services 4 78,008 58,163

215,277 186,498

Transfers and subsidies
Transfers and subsidies 6 668,684 612,774

Total transfers and subsidies 668,684 612,774

Tangible assets 7 274,923 310,575

274,923 310,575

5 4 -

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 1,158,888 1,109,847

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR 130,988 138,759

 

Voted funds 1,564 15,645

Annual appropriation 1,564 15,645
Departmental revenue and NRF Receipts 11 129,424 123,114

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR 130,988 138,759
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
For the year ended 31 March 2019

Note  2018/19  2017/18
R’000 R’000

ASSETS 

Current assets 2,732 24,667
Cash and cash equivalents 8 2,721 24,652

Receivables 9 11 15

 

Non- Current assets 122 143
Receivables 9 122 143

TOTAL ASSETS 2,854 24,810

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities 2,849 24,790
Voted funds to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund 10 1,564 15,645

Departmental revenue and NRF Receipts to be surrendered to the 
Revenue Fund 11 1,201 7,637

Payables 12 84 1,508

 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,849 24,790

NET ASSETS 5 20

Recoverable revenue 5 20

TOTAL 5 20
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
For the year ended 31 March 2019

Note  2018/19  2017/18
R’000 R’000

Opening balance 20 21

Transfers: (15) (1)
Irrecoverable amounts written off -

Debts recovered (included in departmental receipts) (15) (15)

Debts raised - 14

Closing balance 5 20

TOTAL 5 20
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the period ended 31 March 2019

Note  2018/19  2017/18
R’000 R’000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts 1,289,779 1,248,432
Annual appropriated funds received 1.1 1,160,452 1,125,492

Departmental revenue received 2 126,754 120,733

Interest received 2.2 2,573 2,207

Net (increase)/decrease in working capital (1,399) 1,791

Surrendered to Revenue Fund (151,505) (119,288)

Current payments (215,277) (186,498)

(4) -

Transfers and subsidies paid (668,684) (612,774)

13 252,910 331,663

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Payments for capital assets 7 (274,923) (310,575)

Proceeds from sale of capital assets 2.3 97 174

(274,826) (310,401)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Increase/(decrease) in net assets (15) (1)

(15) (1)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (21,931) 21,261

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 24,652 3,391

14 2,721 24,652
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PART A: ACCOUNTING POLICIES

the department’s primary and secondary information. 
The historical cost convention has been used, except where otherwise indicated. Management has used assessments and 

preparation.

statements and to comply with the statutory requirements of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA), Act 1 of 1999 
(as amended by Act 29 of 1999), and the Treasury Regulations issued in terms of the PFMA and the annual Division of 
Revenue Act 

1. Basis of preparation 

2. Going concern 

 Amounts have been presented in the currency of the South African Rand (R) which is also the functional currency 
of  the department.  

4. Rounding 

 exchange rates prevailing at the date of payment / receipt. 

7.1 Appropriated funds
 Appropriated funds comprises of departmental allocations as well as direct charges against the revenue fund   

 the date the appropriation becomes effective. Adjustments made in terms of the adjustments budget process are  

 paid into the relevant revenue fund, unless stated otherwise.
Any amount owing to the relevant revenue fund at the reporting date is recognised as a payable in the statement of 

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2019
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statements when:

department; and
the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

The accrued revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration receivable.
Accrued tax revenue (and related interest and / penalties) is measured at amounts receivable from collecting agents.
Write-offs are made according to the department’s debt write-off policy

8.1.2 Social contributions
Social contributions made by the department in respect of current employees are recognised in the statement of 

Other expenditure (such as goods and services, transfers and subsidies and payments for capital assets) is 

expense if the total consideration paid is more than the capitalisation threshold. 

date.

8.4 Leases

8.4.1 Operating leases
Operating lease payments made during the reporting period are recognised as current expenditure in the statement 

8.4.2 Finance leases 
Finance lease payments made during the reporting period are recognised as capital expenditure in the statement of 

between the capital and interest portions. 
Finance lease assets acquired at the end of the lease term are recorded and measured at the lower of:

the lease term, excluding interest.

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2019
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9. Aid Assistance

Aid assistance not spent for the intended purpose and any unutilised funds from aid assistance that are required to 

9.2 Aid assistance paid

short-term highly liquid investments and bank overdrafts.

disburses the cash. 
Prepayments and advances are initially and subsequently measured at cost.

interest is charged, less amounts already settled or written-off. Write-offs are made according to the department’s 
write-off policy.

14. Financial assets

off, except for recognised loans and receivables, which are measured at cost plus accrued interest, where interest is 
charged, less amounts already settled or written-off.

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2019
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16. Capital Assets

at cost or fair value where the cost cannot be determined reliably. Immovable assets acquired in a non-exchange 
transaction are recorded at fair value at the date of acquisition. Immovable assets are subsequently carried in the 
asset register at cost and are not currently subject to depreciation or impairment.
Subsequent expenditure of a capital nature forms part of the cost of the existing asset when ready for use.

statements.

acquired through a non-exchange transaction is measured at fair value as at the date of acquisition. 
Where the cost of movable capital assets cannot be determined reliably, the movable capital assets are measured at 
fair value and where fair value cannot be determined; the movable assets are measured at R1. 
All assets acquired prior to 1 April 2002 (or a later date as approved by the OAG) may be recorded at R1.
Movable capital assets are subsequently carried at cost and are not subject to depreciation or impairment.
Biological assets are subsequently carried at fair value. 
Subsequent expenditure that is of a capital nature forms part of the cost of the existing asset when ready for use.

16.3 Intangible assets

through a non-exchange transaction are measured at fair value as at the date of acquisition. 

commences the development phase of the project. 
Where the cost of intangible assets cannot be determined reliably, the intangible capital assets are measured at fair 
value and where fair value cannot be determined; the intangible assets are measured at R1. 
All assets acquired prior to 1 April 2002 (or a later date as approved by the OAG) may be recorded at R1.
Intangible assets are subsequently carried at cost and are not subject to depreciation or impairment.
Subsequent expenditure of a capital nature forms part of the cost of the existing asset when ready for use. 

16.4 Project Costs: Work-in-progress

Amounts paid towards capital projects are separated from the amounts recognised and accumulated in work-in-
progress until the underlying asset is ready for use. Once ready for use, the total accumulated payments are recorded 
in an asset register. Subsequent payments to complete the project are added to the capital asset in the asset register. 
Where the department is not the custodian of the completed project asset, the asset is transferred to the custodian 
subsequent to completion.

can be made. The provision is measured as the best estimate of the funds required to settle the present obligation 
at the reporting date.

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2019

185



Annual Report 2018/2019
Mpumalanga: Department of Economic Development and Tourism - Vote 6

17.2 Contingent liabilities

or more uncertain future events not within the control of the department or when there is a present obligation that is 

amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably.

17.3 Contingent assets

events not within the control of the department

17.4 Commitments 

when there is a contractual arrangement or an approval by management in a manner that raises a valid expectation 

of cash. 

either:

recorded is equal to the total value of the fruitless and or wasteful expenditure incurred. 

transferred to receivables for recovery.
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure receivables are measured at the amount that is expected to be recoverable and 
are de-recognised when settled or subsequently written-off as irrecoverable.

equal to the value of the irregular expenditure incurred unless it is impracticable to determine, in which case reasons 
therefor are provided in the note. 
Irregular expenditure is removed from the note when it is either condoned by the relevant authority, transferred to 
receivables for recovery or not condoned and is not recoverable. 
Irregular expenditure receivables are measured at the amount that is expected to be recoverable and are de-
recognised when settled or subsequently written-off as irrecoverable.

Changes in accounting policies that are effected by management have been applied retrospectively in accordance 

cumulative effect of the change in policy. In such instances the department shall restate the opening balances of 
assets, liabilities and net assets for the earliest period for which retrospective restatement is practicable.
Changes in accounting estimates are applied prospectively in accordance with MCS requirements.
Correction of errors is applied retrospectively in the period in which the error has occurred in accordance with MCS 

effect of the error. In such cases the department shall restate the opening balances of assets, liabilities and net assets 
for the earliest period for which retrospective restatement is practicable.

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2019
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23. Principal-Agent arrangements
The department is party to a principal-agent arrangement for [include details here]. In terms of the arrangement the 
department is the [principal / agent] and is responsible for [include details here]. All related revenues, expenditures, 
assets and liabilities have been recognised or recorded in terms of the relevant policies listed herein. Additional 

information; that the department complied with the Standard except that it has departed from a particular requirement 
to achieve fair presentation; and the requirement from which the department has departed, the nature of the departure 
and the reason for departure.

Provincial Revenue Fund when the underlying asset is disposed and the related funds are received.

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between the reporting entity and a 

statements when the transaction is not at arm’s length. 
Key management personnel are those persons having the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and 
controlling the activities of the department. The number of individuals and their full compensation is recorded in the 

Where inventories are acquired as part of a non-exchange transaction, the inventories are measured at fair value as 
at the date of acquisition.
Inventories are subsequently measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value or where intended for distribution 
(or consumed in the production of goods for distribution) at no or a nominal charge, the lower of cost and current 
replacement value.
The cost of inventories is assigned by using the weighted average cost basis.

Public Private Partnerships are accounted for based on the nature and or the substance of the partnership. The 
transaction is accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policies.

thereof together with the description and nature of the concession fees received, the unitary fees paid, rights and 

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2019
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PART B: EXPLANATORY NOTES

1. Annual Appropriation 

1.1  Annual Appropriation

Included are funds appropriated in terms of the Appropriation Act (and the Adjustments Appropriation Act) for National 
Departments (Voted funds) and Provincial Departments:

2018/19 2017/18

Final 
Appropriation

Actual Funds 
Funds not 

Final 
Appropriation

Appropriation 

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Administration 94,085 94,085 - 91,795 91,795

Integrated Economic 
Development 532,652 532,652 - 537,012 537,012

Trade and Sector 
Development 16,731 16,731 - 17,387 17,387

Business Regulation 114,479 114,479 - 103,589 103,589

Economic Planning 18,857 18,857 - 16,987 16,987

Tourism 383,648 383,648 - 358,722 358,722

Total 1,160,452 1,160,452 - 1,125,492 1,125,492

 
1.2 Conditional grants 

Note  2018/19  2017/18
R’000 R’000

Total grants received 29 3,259 3,505

The amount of R3 259 000 relates to Extended Public Works Programme (EPWP) of which R1 000 000 was 
appropriated under MEGA and R2 259 000 under MTPA respectively. An amount of R1 000 000 has been transferred to 
MEGA and R2 259 000 to MTPA respectively during the year under review. 

 

Note  2018/19  2017/18
R’000 R’000

Tax revenue 126,622 111,564

Sales of goods and services other than capital assets 2.1 114 108

Interest, dividends and rent on land 2.2 2,573 2,207

Sales of capital assets 2.3 97 174

2.4 18 9,061

Total revenue collected 129,424 123,114
129,424 123,114
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Note  2018/19  2017/18
2 R’000 R’000

Sales of goods and services produced by the department 114 108
Sales by market establishment 114 108

Total 114 108

 

Note  2018/19  2017/18
2 R’000 R’000

Interest (PMG Account) 2,573 2,207

Total 2,573 2,207

2.3 Sale of capital assets

Note  2018/19  2017/18
2 R’000 R’000

Tangible assets 97 174
Proceed from Sale of Machinery and equipment 97 174

Total 97 174

 

Note  2018/19  2017/18
2 R’000 R’000

Other Receipts including Recoverable Revenue 18 9,061

Total 18 9,061

through Persal deductions. 

 

3.1 Salaries and Wages

Note  2018/19  2017/18
R’000 R’000

Basic salary 93,007 88,837

Performance award 2,429 1,002

Service Based 217 117

Compensative/circumstantial 3,022 1,992

Other non-pensionable allowances 20,189 19,524

Total 118,864 111,472

Other non-pensionable allowances include among others subsidized vehicles, service bonuses and housing allowances.
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3.2 Social contributions

Note  2018/19  2017/18
R’000 R’000

Pension 12,391 11,317

Medical 5,994 5,527

Bargaining council 20 19

Total 18,405 16,863
137,269 128,335

Average number of employees 219 240

 

Note  2018/19  2017/18
R’000 R’000

Administrative fees 1,065 832

Advertising 1,233 1,455

Minor assets 4.1 152 356

Catering 1,947 479

Communication 2,761 3,173

Computer services 4.2 488 615

Legal services 390 2,427

Contractors 18 505

Consultants: Business and advisory services 2,413 551

Agency and support / outsourced services 14,735 2,695

Audit cost – external 4.3 4,406 3,935

Fleet services 1,002 1,113

Consumables 4.4 2,943 2,363

Operating leases 20,760 20,101

Property payments 4.5 3,509 2,947

Travel and subsistence 4.6 16,987 12,336

Venues and facilities 741 413

Training and development 2,161 1,534

Other operating expenditure 4.7 297 333

Total 78,008 58,163
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4.1 Minor assets

Note  2018/19  2017/18
4 R’000 R’000

Tangible assets 152 356
Machinery and equipment 152 356

Total 152 356

The difference between total minor assets above and the total additions under note 25.4 is because of minor assets 

(2019/20).

 

Note  2018/19  2017/18
4 R’000 R’000

SITA computer services 133 148

External computer service providers 355 467

Total 488 615

 

Note  2018/19  2017/18
4 R’000 R’000

Regularity audits 4,406 3,935

Total 4,406 3,935

 
4.4 Consumables

Note  2018/19  2017/18
4 R’000 R’000

Consumable supplies 1,503 856

Uniform and clothing 183 161

Household supplies 1,144 678

IT consumables 95 17

Other consumables 81 -

1,440 1,507

Total 2,943 2,363
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Note  2018/19  2017/18
4 R’000 R’000

Municipal services 2,316 2,457

Property management fees 19 20

Other 1,174 470

Total 3,509 2,947

Other property payments above relates to cleaning services in buildings utilized by the Department for the Regional 

 

Note  2018/19  2017/18
4 R’000 R’000

Local 16,707 12,297

Foreign 280 39

Total 16,987 12,336

 

Note  2018/19  2017/18
4 R’000 R’000

Professional bodies, membership and subscription fees 2 2

Other 295 331

Total 297 333

Other operating expenditure includes insurance payment for subsidized motor vehicles and Executive motor vehicle 
amounting to R264 000 and R31 000 for the printing of publications.

 

Note  2018/19  2017/18
R’000 R’000

Debts written off 5.1 4 -

Total 4 -
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Note  2018/19  2017/18
5 R’000 R’000

Recoverable revenue written off

Staff debt 4 -

Total 4 -

4 -

 
6. Transfers and subsidies

Note  2018/19  2017/18
R’000 R’000

Provinces and municipalities Annex 1 7 -

Departmental agencies and accounts Annex 2 475,243 440,331

Public corporations and private enterprises Annex 3 193,232 172,259

Households Annex 4 202 184

Total 668,684 612,774

 

Note  2018/19  2017/18
R’000 R’000

Tangible assets 274,923 310,575
27 271,488 307,000

Machinery and equipment 25 3,435 3,575

Total 274,923 310,575

 

Voted funds Aid assistance Total
R’000 R’000 R’000

Tangible assets 274,923 - 274,923
271,488 - 271,488

Machinery and equipment 3,435 3,435

Total 274,923 - 274,923

 

Voted funds Aid assistance Total
R’000 R’000 R’000

Tangible assets 310,575 - 310,575
307,000 - 307,000

Machinery and equipment 3,575 - 3,575

Total 310,575 - 310,575
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Note  2018/19  2017/18
R’000 R’000

Consolidated Paymaster General Account 2,721 24,652

Total 2,721 24,652

 

2018/19 2017/18
Current Non-current Total Current Non-current Total

Note R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Claims 
recoverable 9.1 11 122 133 15 143 158

Total 11 122 133 15 143 158

 
9.1 Staff debt

Note 2018/19 2017/18
9 R’000 R’000

Water and Rent 16 22

Tax debt - 4

Salary reversal control 9 9

Sal deduction acc. 1 1

Scopa Resolution 51 51

Salary reversal 51 51

Departmental debt - 9

Salary overpayment 5 11

Total 133 158

 

Note 2018/19 2017/18
R’000 R’000

Opening balance 15,645 3,573

Prior period error 

As restated 15,645 3,573

1,564 15,645

Paid during the year (15,645) (3,573)

Closing balance 1,564 15,645
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Note 2018/19 2017/18
R’000 R’000

Opening balance 7,637 238

Prior period error 

As restated 7,637 238

Transfer from Statement of Financial Performance (as restated) 129,424 123,114

Paid during the year (135,860) (115,715)

Closing balance 1,201 7,637

 

Note 2018/19 2017/18
R’000 R’000

Other payables 12.1 84 1,508

Total 84 1,508

 

Note 2018/19 2017/18
12 R’000 R’000

Sal: Income Tax : CL 84 1,343

Sal: Pension Fund : CL - 165

Total 84 1,508

 

Note 2018/19 2017/18
R’000 R’000

130,988 138,759

Add back non cash/cash movements not deemed operating activities 121,922 192,904

(Increase)/decrease in receivables – current 25 284

Increase/(decrease) in payables – current (1,424) 1,507

Proceeds from sale of capital assets (97) (174)

Expenditure on capital assets 274,923 310,575

Surrenders to Revenue Fund (151,505) (119,288)

252,910 331,663

 

Note 2018/19 2017/18

R’000 R’000

Consolidated Paymaster General account 2,721 24,652

Total 2,721 24,652
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15. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

15.1 Contingent liabilities

Note 2018/19 2017/18
R’000 R’000

Liable to Nature
Housing loan guarantees Employees Annex 6 84 84

Claims against the department Annex 5 3,066 3,446

Annex 7 107 112

Total 3,257 3,642

The timing and the extent of payments in respect of Claims against the department are dependent on legal processes 
currently underway, and beyond the control of the department. 

 
16. Commitments

Note 2018/19 2017/18
R’000 R’000

Approved and contracted 771 4,501

771 4,501

Total Commitments 771 4,501

None of the commitments are for longer than a year.

 

17.1 Accruals

2018/19 2017/18
R’000 R’000

Total Total

Goods and services 2,856 1,705 4,561 1,290

Total 2,856 1,705  4,561 1,290

Note 2018/19 2017/18
R’000 R’000

Programme 1: Administration 1,860 1,039

Programme 2: Integrated Economic Development 2,575 59

Programme 3: Trade and Sector Development 39 114

Programme 4: Business Regulation 48 26

Programme 5: Economic Planning 30 35

Programme 6: Tourism 9 17

Total 4,561 1,290
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2018/19 2017/18
R’000 R’000

Total Total

Goods and services 11,270 915 12,185 324

Capital assets 346 - 346 -

Total 11,616 915 12,531 324

Note 2018/19 2017/18
R’000 R’000

Programme 1: Administration 12,531 324

Total 12,531 324

 
Note 2018/19 2017/18

Included in the above totals are the following: R’000 R’000
Annex 7 116 218

Annex 7 103 -

Total 219 218

 

Accruals

Note 2018/19 2017/18
R’000 R’000

Leave entitlement 7,071 6,325

Service bonus (Thirteenth cheque) 3,813 3,608

Performance awards 2,284 1,941

Capped leave commitments 7,692 7,292

Long service awards 115 208

Total 20,975 19,374

At this stage the department is not able to reliably measure the long term portion of the long service awards.
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19. Lease commitments

2018/19

Buildings and 

structures Total
Not later than 1 year 8,473 1,618 10,091

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 15,217 347 15,564

Total lease commitments 23,690 1,965 25,655

2017/18

Buildings and 

structures Total
Not later than 1 year 1,879 3,082 4,961

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years - 1,965 1,965

Total lease commitments 1,879 5,047 6,926

 

Note  2018/19  2017/18
R’000 R’000

Tax revenue 11,313 8,460

Total 11,313 8,460

 

Note  2018/19  2017/18
R’000 R’000

Opening balance 8,460 14,106

Less: amounts received (8,460) (14,106)

Add: amounts recognised 11,313 8,460

Closing balance 11,313 8,460

The closing balance of R11 313 000 relates to Gambling levies, Gambling applications, penalties and license fees as well 
as Liquor applications, penalties and license fees which was paid in April 2019 after the reporting date.
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Note  2018/19  2017/18
R’000 R’000

Opening balance 49,545 37,492

Prior period error

As restated 49,545 37,492

Add: Irregular expenditure – relating to prior year 330 817

Add: Irregular expenditure – relating to current year 40,338 11,433

Less: Current year amounts condoned - (197)

Closing balance 90,213 49,545

Current year 40,338 12,053

Prior years 49,875 37,492

Total 90,213 49,545

Investigations have been concluded in respect of the Irregular Expenditure brought forward from prior years. Processes to 
condone or remove items from the irregular expenditure register are currently under way. Where applicable, cases have 
been handed over to the relevant law enforcement agencies for action, and to Civil Courts for recovery. Investigations 
in respect of the rest of the Irregular expenditure brought forward from prior periods are still underway, along with the 
investigations into Irregular expenditure that has been recognized during the current year.

 

Incident 2018/19
R’000

Property leases concluded by Department of 
Public Works, Roads and Transport for the 
Department (Dedt) allowed to continue month to 
month basis without advertising. None 9,679

Non-compliance with SCM procedures such as 
Local content requirements. None 1,476

Performance awards granted in excess to the 
prescribed budget None 365

Incorrect SCM procedure followed for the total 

equipment None 8,834

Payment of Acting allowances in contravention of 
the Public Service Act and Regulations None 866

Uneven use of travel agents on transversal 
contracts None 7,136

Failure by implementing agent to obtain  
approv-al for variation order on MIFPM None 12,312

Total 40,668
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Note 2018/19 2017/18
R’000 R’000

Opening balance 3,936 3,936

Prior period error -

As restated 3,936 3,936

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure – relating to current year 3,841 -

Closing balance 7,777 3,936

Investigations have been concluded in respect of the Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure brought forward from prior 
years. Processes to condone or remove items from the Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure register are currently under 
way. Investigations in respect of the Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure recognized in the current year are still under way. 

 

2018/19 2017/18
R’000 R’000

Current 3,936 3,936

Capital 3,841 -

Total 7,777 3,936

 

Incident

steps taken/
criminal 

proceedings 2017/18
R’000

None 3,841

Total 3,841

23.1    Department of Public Works, Roads and Transport
During the year the Department received service from the Department of Public Works, Road and Transport that are 
related to the Department. The Department of Economic Development and Tourism occupies Government Building 
in the Province provided by the Department of Public Works, Roads and Transport free of charge.

23.2    Department of Finance
During the year the Department received service from the Department of Finance that are related to the Department. 
The Department has entered into a memorandum of understanding for the rendering of information technology 
communication services (ICT) with Mpumalanga Provincial Treasury. These services are provided by the Department 
of Finance free of charge.
Furthermore this department and the Department of Finance are related in that they share the same Member of the 
Executive Council. However they remain separate votes within the Mpumalanga Provincial Administration.
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23.3    Departmental Agencies
The Department has three Public Entities reporting to it and these entities assist the department in carrying out its 
legislative mandate. The Department enters into a shareholders compact with the Boards of these agencies. The 
public entities are as listed below;
Mpumalanga Economic Regulator – MER
Mpumalanga Economic Growth Agency – MEGA
Mpumalanga Tourism and Parks Agency – MTPA 

Note  2018/19  2017/18
R’000 R’000

Tax revenue 126,622 111,564

Total 126,622 111,564

The above relates to revenue collected by the Mpumalanga Economic Regulator (MER) through its regulation of the 
gambling and liquor industries. This includes casinos taxes, gambling in the Province that is related to horse racing and 
other sports betting. Also included are liquor license application fees, annual renewals collected during the year under 
review.

Note  2018/19  2017/18
R’000 R’000

Transfers 668,684 612,744

Total 668,684 612,744

Note  2018/19  2017/18
R’000 R’000

Receivables from related parties 140,225 31,763

Payables to related parties (39,471) (45,395)

Total 100,754 (13,632)

The receivable amount of R140 225 000 above relates to amount of R11 313 000 due to the Department from MER for 

unspent amount of R128 912 000 transferred to MEGA for the development of MIFPM.

The payable amount of R39 471 000 relates to costs incurred by MEGA in respect of MIFPM.

 

No. of 
 2018/19  2017/18

R’000 R’000
Member of the Executive Council 1 1,978 1,979

Deputy Director-General (HOD) 1 1,816 1,330

Chief Directors (incl. CFO) and Planner 5 7,580 6,253

Total 11,374 9,562
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MOVEMENT IN MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
31 MARCH 2019

Opening 
balance

Value 
adjustments Additions Disposals

Closing 
Balance

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
MACHINERY AND 
EQUIPMENT 19,974 - 3,781 (1,569) 22,186
Transport assets 5,321 - 653 (351) 5,623

Computer equipment 5,673 - 1,292 (850) 6,115

equipment 8,397 - 1,784 (331) 9,850

Other machinery and 
equipment 583 - 52 (37) 598

TOTAL MOVABLE 
TANGIBLE CAPITAL 
ASSETS 19,974 - 3,781 (1,569) 22,186

 
25.1 Additions

ADDITIONS TO MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
31 MARCH 2019

(Capital Work 
in Progress 

current 
costs and 

current, not 
paid

(Paid current 

Total
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

MACHINERY AND 
EQUIPMENT 3,435 - - 346 3,781
Transport assets 653 - - - 653

Computer equipment 1,292 - - - 1,292

equipment 1,438 - - 346 1,784

Other machinery and 
equipment 52 - - - 52

TOTAL ADDITIONS TO 
MOVABLE TANGIBLE 
CAPITAL ASSETS 3,435 - - 346 3,781

The difference in cash additions under note 7 and the amount above is that R346 000 worth of capital assets was received 
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25.2 Disposals

DISPOSALS OF MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
31 MARCH 2019

disposal Total disposals Actual
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT 351 1,218 1,569 97
Transport assets 351 - 351 97

Computer equipment - 850 850 -

- 331 331 -

Other machinery and equipment - 37 37 -

TOTAL DISPOSAL OF MOVABLE 
TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS 351 1,218 1,569 97

Three vehicles were sold for cash through an auction conducted by the Department of Public Works, Roads and Transport. 
Two stolen laptops and a projector were written off. Furniture and computers were donated to Cooperatives.

 

MOVEMENT IN TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018
Opening 
balance

Prior period 
error Additions Disposals

Closing 
Balance

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
MACHINERY AND 
EQUIPMENT 17,127 - 3,575 728 19,974
Transport assets 4,701 - 1,330 710 5,321

Computer equipment 4,627 - 1,064 18 5,673

equipment 7,216 - 1,181 - 8,397

Other machinery and 
equipment 583 - - - 583

TOTAL MOVABLE 
TANGIBLE CAPITAL 
ASSETS 17,127 - 3,575 728 19,974
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25.4 Minor assets

MOVEMENT IN MINOR ASSETS PER THE ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS AT 31 MARCH 2019

Total
R’000 R’000

Opening balance 4,003 4,003
Value adjustments - -
Additions 256 256
Disposals (406) (406)
TOTAL MINOR ASSETS 3,853 3,853

Total
R’000 R’000

Number of R1 minor assets 24 24
Number of minor assets at cost 1,963 1,963
TOTAL NUMBER OF MINOR ASSETS 1,987 1,987

 
Minor assets

MOVEMENT IN MINOR ASSETS PER THE ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS AT 31 MARCH 2018

Total
R’000 R’000

Opening balance 3,648 3,648
Additions 356 356
Disposals (1) (1)
TOTAL MINOR ASSETS 4,003 4,003

Total
R’000 R’000

Number of R1 minor assets 27 27
Number of minor assets at cost 2,096 2,096
TOTAL NUMBER OF MINOR ASSETS 2,123 2,123

 

MOVABLE ASSETS WRITTEN OFF FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS AT 31 MARCH 2018
Specialised 

assets
Intangible 

assets
Heritage 

assets
and Biological 

assets Total
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Assets written off - - - 18 - 18
TOTAL MOVABLE 
ASSETS WRITTEN OFF - - - 18 - 18
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MOVEMENT IN IMMOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED  
31 MARCH 2019

Opening 
balance

Value 
adjustments Additions Disposals

Closing 
Balance

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
BUILDINGS AND OTHER 
FIXED STRUCTURES 27 - - (27) -

27 - - (27) -

TOTAL IMMOVABLE 
TANGIBLE CAPITAL 
ASSETS 27 - - (27) -

 
26.1 Additions

ADDITIONS TO IMMOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED  
31 MARCH 2019

(Capital Work 
in Progress 

current 
costs and 

current, not 
paid

(Paid current 

Total
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

BUILDING AND OTHER 
FIXED STRUCTURES 271,488 23,303 (165,879) (128,912) -

271,488 23,303 (165,879) (128,912) -

TOTAL ADDITIONS TO 
IMMOVABLE TANGIBLE 
CAPITAL ASSETS 271,488 23,303 (165,879) (128,912) -

The cash above comprises of an addition of R271 488 000 transferred during the year under review and R23 302 847 

 
26.2 Disposals

DISPOSALS OF MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
31 MARCH 2019

disposal Total disposals Actual
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

BUILDINGS AND OTHER FIXED 
STRUCTURES - 27 27 -

- 27 27 -

TOTAL DISPOSAL OF MOVABLE 
TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS - 27 27 -

 

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2019

205



Annual Report 2018/2019
Mpumalanga: Department of Economic Development and Tourism - Vote 6

MOVEMENT IN IMMOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED  
31 MARCH 2018

Opening 
balance

Prior period 
error Additions Disposals

Closing 
Balance

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
BUILDINGS AND OTHER 
FIXED STRUCTURES 27 - - - 27

27 - - - 27

TOTAL IMMOVABLE 
TANGIBLE CAPITAL 
ASSETS 27 - - - 27

 
27. Capital Work-in-progress

Note

Opening 
balance 

1 April 2018
Current Year 

WIP
AR) / Contracts 

terminated

Closing 
balance 

Annexure 7 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

structures 401,008 165,879 - 566,887

TOTAL 401,008 165,879 - 566,887

Number of projects 2018/19

Planned, 
Construction 

not started

Planned, 
Construction 

started
Total

R’000
0 to 1 Year - - -

1 to 3 Years - - -

3 to 5 Years - 1 566,887

Longer than 5 Years - - -

Total - 1 566,887

Note 2018/19 2017/18
R’000 R’000

Retentions 1,335 1,335

Total 1,335 1,335
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CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS AS AT 31 MARCH 2018

Note

Opening 
balance 

1 April 2017
Prior period 

error
Current Year 

WIP
AR) / Contracts 

terminated

Closing 
balance 

Annexure 8 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Buildings and 

structures 102,245 14,150 312,913 - 401,008

TOTAL 102,245 14,150 312,913 - 401,008

Number of projects 2017/18

Planned, 
Construction 

not started

Planned, 
Construction 

started
Total

R’000
0 to 1 Year - - -

1 to 3 Years - 1 401,008

3 to 5 Years - - -

Longer than 5 Years - - -

Total - 1 401,008

 
28. Prior period errors

28.1 Correction of prior period errors 

Note

Amount  
bef error 

correction
Prior period 

error 
Restated
Amount

2017/18 2017/18 2018/19
R’000 R’000 R’000

Liabilities: 
Year end balances arising from revenue/payments 77,158 (90,790) (13,632)
WIP 312,913 (14,150) 298,763
Net effect 312,913 (14,150) 285,131

Prior year adjustment of (R90 790 000) to the previously recorded balance of R77 155 000 serves to restate the combined 
value of year-end balance arising from related party revenue/payments (Note 23) to correct an error of additions in the 

WIP
The prior year adjustment to reduce the balance of Work In Progress (WIP) by an amount of (R14 150 000) serves to 
restate the value of Work In Progress at the end of March 2018 from R415 158 000 to R401 008 000. This adjustment 
removes non-cash transactions from the closing balance of Work In Progress at the end of March 2018.
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